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Message to Shareholders

As the new era of financial holding companies was
being ushered in, Chiao Tung Bank and International
Securities Co., Ltd. on February 4, 2002 were formally
brought together under the CTB Financial Holding
Company. Later, on August 22, 2002, the Chung Hsing Bills
Finance Corporation and Barits Securities Corp. also became
part of the group, to be joined by the International
Commercial Bank of China and Chung Kuo Insurance Co.,
Ltd. on December 31, 2002, At that point the holding
company's name was changed to Mega Financial Holding
Company. Thus, a large-scale financial holding company
that transcends the individual domains of banking, bills
finance, securities and insurance has been established.
Performance during the Group's first year of operations has

been excellent, and a process of internal reorganization has

begun among the six subsidiaries, the integration of the three

Chairman SHEN-CHIH CHENG

securities subsidiaries being a key part of this.

Looking back over the year 2002, the world economy, influenced by the dishonest accounting
practices of a number of large U.S. enterprises, fears of further terrorist attacks and the likelihood of war
breaking out between the U.S. and Irag, registered a growth rate of only 1.7%. The global economic
outlook for 2003 continues to remain conservative. As for the Taiwan economy, the weak global conditions
have resulted in its external trade being far from ideal throughout the year. In addition, due to falling asset
prices in both its stock and real estate markets, a rising unemployment rate, and shrinking wealth and
incomes, domestic demand has also declined. In terms of financial activities, interest rates have continued
their downward trend, and funding conditions remain eased. The stock market has been affected by the
slowing down of the global economic recovery, the war in Iraq and the failure of local electronics stocks to
perform as well as expected. As investors adopt a wait-and-see attitude, investment strategies have become

increasingly conservative.

Despite this overall weakness in macroeconomic conditions, subsidiaries of the Mega Financial
Holding Company have over the past year been able to achieve satisfactory operating results in their
respective domains. The Company's business operations for the year 2002 and business plans for the year

2003 may be summarized as follows:
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Bl Review of Business Operations in 2002
A. Results of Operating Plans

Pursuant to the Financial Holding Company Act, the business scope of financial holding companies is
limited to investments and management of the companies in which they are investing. At the end of the year
2002, the Company has six wholly-owned subsidiary companies, namely, Chiao Tung Bank Co.. Lid., Barits
International Securities Co., Ltd., Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation, Barits Securities Corp., the
International Commercial Bank of China and Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. The operating results for each of

these subsidiaries are as follows:

Chiao Tung Bank
Loans: Total credit outstanding in 2002 (including loans, guarantees and acceptances) amounted to

NT$441,040 million, an increase of 1.93% over the NT$432,685 million recorded in 2001.

Long-term equity investments: Investment outstanding in 2002 amounted to NT$20,692 million, an increase of
2.68% when compared with the NT$20,153 million recorded in 2001.

Deposits: Total volume of deposits in 2002 amounted to NT$270.563 million, a decrease of 0.33% as
compared with the NT$271,450 million for 2001. Demand deposits amounted to NT$37.516 million, 10.51%
up on the corresponding figure for 2001,

Foreign exchange business: Total foreign exchange transactions undertaken in 2002 amounted to US$42,729
million, an 18.27% increase over the US$36,127 million recorded in 2001, Of this amount, import and export
operations both increased by 9.8% and 6.9%, respectively, over the previous year.

Consumer bcmking business: The Retail Banking Department was established in July 2002, and at the end of
the year outstanding consumer loans amounted to NT$13,191 million, reflecting an increase of 133.87% over
such loans outstanding at the end of June 2002. Consumer service fees for the year as a whole amounted to
NT$21 million.

Trust business: For 2002, the average value of securities taken under custodianship was NT$285,561 million,
an increase of 11.28% over the corresponding NT$256,608 million for 2001. For the year 2002, the volume of
non-discretionary trust business for investment in local mutual funds and overseas securities undertaken
amounted to NT$4,501 million, an increase of T0% over 2001,

Nun—per[c:rming Loans: The Bank sold in September 2002 NTS17.8 billion in non-performing loans by public

auction, with the result that the non-performing loans ratio was 3.07% at the end of 2002.

Barits International Securities Co., Ltd. (formerly International Securities Co., Lid)

Total revenue from brokerage activities in 2002 amounted to NT$693 million . an increase of NTS181
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million or 35.35% compared with the NT$512 million for 2001, and representing a market share of about 1.5%.
Total revenue from underwriting in the year amounted to NT$32 million, an increase of NTS15 million or
88.24% over the NT517 million for 2001. The total loss from trading of securities for the year amounted to
NT%$152 million. which was NT$149 million higher than the NT$3 million loss recorded in 2001. The net loss
before tax for the year 2002 amounted to NTS178 million, an increase of NT$61 million over the pretax net loss
of NT$117 million for 2001,

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation

Guaranteed issues of commercial paper outstanding at the end of 2002 for all bills finance companies
amounted to NT$517.921 billion. The corresponding amount for Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation was
NT$161.024 billion representing a market share of 31.09%.

Initial purchases of commercial paper in the primary market in the year 2002 for all bills finance companies
together amounted to NT$6,930.917 billion. The purchases made by Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation
totaled NTS1,760.705 billion, representing a market share of 25.40%.

Transactions in commercial paper in the secondary market in the year 2002 for bills finance companies as a
whole amounted to NT$34,144.313 billion. The transactions attributable to Chung Hsing Bills Finance

Corporation totaled NT$6,911.943 billion, representing a market share of 20.24%.

Barits Securities Corp

Revenue from brokerage activities in 2002 amounted to NT$277 million, an increase of NT$56 million or
25.34% over the NT$221 million recorded in 2001, and representing a market share of about 0.4%. Total
revenue from underwriting operations in 2002 amounted to NT$250 million, an increase of NT$113 million or
82.48% over the NT5137 million for 2001, representing a market share of about 7.13% (calculated on the basis
of amounts publicly underwritten). Total revenue from trading of securities in 2002 amounted to NT$79 million,
an increase of NT$395 million over the NT$316 million loss recorded in 2001. Net income before tax for the
year 2002 amounted to NT$189 million, a decrease of NT$732 million over the pretax income of NT$921

million recorded in 2001.

International Commercial Bank of China
Deposits: Total volume of deposits in 2002 amounted to NTS554.898 million, representing growth of 9.98%
compared with the NT$504,549 million recorded for 2001.

Loans: Total credit outstanding in 2002 (including loans, guarantees and acceptances) amounted to
NT$537.513 million, a decline of 1.59% as compared with the NT$546,190 million for 2001.

Foreign exchange business: Total foreign exchange business undertaken in 2002 amounted to US$130,752
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million, an increase of 23.20% over the US$106,128 million for 2001. Import and export operations for the
year 2002 increased by 3.01% and 5.92%, respectively, over the previous year.

Non-performing loans: Non-performing loans outstanding at the end of 2002 amounted to NT$11,905
million, representing a non-performing loans ratio of 2.36%.

Long-term equity investments: Total long-term equity investments outstanding at the end of 2002 amounted to
NT$9,388 million, representing a decline of 7.43% over the NT$10,141 million for 2001.

Trust business: The average value of securities taken under custodianship in 2002 amounted to NT$222,185
million, an increase of 23.41% over the NT$180,039 million recorded for 2001. The volume of business in
respect of non-discretionary trust funds for investment in local mutual funds and overseas securities
undertaken during 2002 amounted to NT$7,390 million. The volume of business in terms of acting as agent for
the sale of local mutual funds undertaken during the year amounted to NT530.654 million.

Consumer banking business: Consumer banking loans outstanding at the end of 2002 amounted to
NT$63,496 million, a decline of 15.82% over the corresponding amount for 2001, while consumer service fee

income came to NTS459 million.

Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd.

The Company's gross premium and reinsurance premium income in 2002 amounted to NT$6,108 million, this
being an increase of NT$297 million, or growth of 5.11% when compared with the NT$5.811 million for 2001.

Direct written business

Total gross direct written premiums for the year amounted to NT$5,219 million, an increase of NT$331
million or 6.77% compared with the NT$4,888 million for 2001.

Reinsurance business

Total reinsurance premiums amounted to NT$890 million, which was NT3$33 million or 3.58% less than the
NT$923 million recorded for the year 2001.

B. Comparison of Budget with Actual

The Company's budget for the year 2002 was achieved as follows: Expressed in milions of NT§
Budgeted Achual Achievement Rate
Operating revenues 4,257 4,502 103.92%
Operating prokits 6,106 6,374 104.39%
Met income before fax 6,141 6,299 102.57%
Met income &,141 6,298 102 56%
Eamings per share MT51.53 MT51.06 6% 28%
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C. Analysis of Profitability
For the year 2002 (i.e. from February 4, 2002 to December 31, 2002), the Company's major results from

operations were as follows: operating revenues NT$6,502 million, operating expenses NT$127 million, net
income before tax NT$6,299 million, net income after tax NT$6,298 million, and earnings per share after tax
NT$1.06. The net income rate was 96.87%, the return on assets 7.57%. and the rate of return on shareholders'
equity 3.84%.

Il Business Plans for 2003
A. Major Operating Policies

“ Bringing various kinds of financial institution into the Group, to extend full-fledged scope of services.

“ Strengthening cross-selling channels and providing "one-stop shopping" for financial services.

“ Establishing common IT platforms, and upgrading the efficiency of each type of business and its
supervision.

“Integrating the various resources, strengthening organizational efficiency, and promoting financial
modernization.

# Enhancing group operating performance, and strengthening assets and liabilities management.

B. Business Targets

Major business targets for 2003 are estimated as follows:
Expressed in milions of NT except EPS

Item Amount

peraling revenues MNTE14,087
Operoling profits MNT$15,682
Met income befare fax MT315,009
et income MNTE1 5,009
Eamings per share NT$1.53

The year 2002 was a year of consolidation and expansion for the Mega Financial Holding Company, while
2003 promises to be a year for the full-scale integration of its business activities. As to the outlook for the
future, the Company will mobilize the Group's comprehensive resources and actively promote its various
business activities, in order to achieve the holding company's ultimate objective of achieving scale economies

and resource sharing,
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The Mega Financial Holding Company has combined the unique advantages of several different types of
financial institution. Because of the valuable support provided by the previous shareholders of each of the
Company's subsidiaries, the Mega Financial Group has been able to become what it is today in the midst of a
very competitive and rapidly-changing environment. As we move forward into the future to provide the general
public with a comprehensive range of integrated financial services, il is my sincere hope that each of our
distinguished shareholders will continue to offer us their unfailing support and frequently enrich us with their

constructive comments.

Shen-Chih Cheng

Chairman
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[I History of the Company

Mega Financial Holding Company (the Company) was
formed by Chiao Tung Bank Co., Ltd. (CTB) and Barits
International Securities Co., Lid. (BIS: formerly International
Securities Co., Ltd.) on February 4, 2002 in accordance with the
Financial Holding Company Act and other related laws through
exchange of shares. On August 22, 2002, Chung Hsing Bills
Finance Corporation (CHBF) and Barits Securities Corp. (BS)
Joined the Company through exchange of shares. On December
31, 2002, the Company acquired a 100% equity stake both in
International Commercial Bank of China (ICBC). an investee of
the Company originally accounted for under equity method with
a 28% stake, and Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. (CKI) through
exchange of shares. On the same date, the Company changed its
name from CTB Financial Holding Company to Mega Financial
Holding Company. Shares of the Company have been listed and
traded on the Taiwan Stock Exchange since February 4, 2002.
The Company is mainly engaged in investment activities
approved by the governing authorities and management of the

investee companies.
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|]] Capital and Shares, Corporate Bonds and Participation in the
Issue of Overseas Depositary Receipts

Paid-in copital NT$110, 488,402,440
Mumber of common shares issued 11,048,840,244 shares
MNumber of preferred shares issued Mone
Corporate bonds issued NT$15,000,000,000
Participation in the issue of Overseas Depositary Recsipts MNone

Nowe: The Company Fexs nod disied overseas corporate bods.

Il 7en Major Shareholders

_ Apr. 7, 2003

Shareholders’ Name No. of Shares Percentage
inistry of Finance 1,098.277.121 2.94%
The Development Fund, Executive Yuan 649,921,587 5.88%
Churghwe Post Co., Lid, 539,353,335 4,88%
Bank of Taiwan 283,221,708 2.56%
MNaticnal Financial Stabilizafion Fund 280,072,780 2.53%
Cenftral Investment Holding Co., Lid. 264,350,141 239%
Kuo Hua Life Insurance Ce., Lid 144,421,804 1.49%
Bureau of Labor Insurance 135,537,607 1.23%
United Microelectronics Corp. 103,028,091 0.93%
Barits Development Corp. 91,900,779 0.83%
Total 3610056733 32.46%

Bonuses to Employees, Directors and Supervisors

A. Bonuses Stipulated in the Company's Articles of Incorporation

According to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, the after-tax net income shall be used to offset the
accumulated deficit first and then be appropriated to the legal reserve at the rate regulated by the governing
authority. The remainder shall be appropriated to the special reserve. if necessary, and an appropriated portion is
retained according to the Company's financing requirements. Any remaining income will be distributed in the

following order based on the resolution from the shareholders.

1. Dividends

Cash dividends should not exceed 507 of the total dividends, and the remainder will be in the form of stock
dividends.
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2. Hemuneration to directors and supervisors

Eemuneration to directors and supervisors should not exceed 1% of the total distributed amount.

3. Bonus to employees

Bonus to employees ranges from 0.02% to 0.16% of the total distributed amount.

B. Bonuses for 2002
The Company's board of directors on April 21, 2003 passed a resolution proposing cash bonuses to
employees totaling NT$7,807,000 and bonuses to directors and supervisors amounting to NTS48,400,000,

Following these appropriations, the pro forma eamings per share for the year 2002 will amount to NT$1.05.

Organization

l Shareholders’ Meeting

ll Supervisors

‘ Auditing Office Board of Directors 1Risk Management Committee

Chairman

—

President

Executive Vice President

el o
Depaitment o eV SICYCT

Deparitment Depanfment Deparitment
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Board of Directors & Supervisors

Dec. 31, 2002
Chairman Shen-Chih Cheng
Director Tzong-Yeong Lin Duei Tsai Chao-Yih Chen
Pao-Sheng Wei Chin-Tsair Tsay Chih-Chen Cheng
Kuo—ﬁ_siung Chuang Teh-{fhien Su Hung;;fen Chien
Lo-Shan Wang Fu Yao Juan Robert H.C.Tsao
Chia-:i;:sung Hung Lan-,lﬁng An Pei-Ci;l_m Patty Tsai
Wen-‘-';‘.k_fen Hsui Cheng Sheng.-‘r’en Liu a
Supervisor Pi-Liang Liu Neng-Yuan Yu Chi-Shih Cheng
N Ctiein Chien |
Executive Officers
Dec. 31, 2002
President Kuo-Hsiung Chuang
Executive Vice Prasident - Feng-Yi Huang
Executive Vice President * Kuang-5i $hiu
Senior Vice President & General Managsr, Business Development Department Ching Tson Wai
Senior Vice President & General Manager, Treasury Department Juivum Lin
Senior Vice President & General Managesr, Electronic Dala Frocesing Deparfment Ray Chao
Senior Vice Prasident & General Manager, Administration Depariment Yung-Ming Chen

Note [ The Compoany's Presidens, Mr Kuo-Hsinnr Chuane, retived fram office an January |, 2003, being replaced by the Chairman of the Tmternational Commercial
Bk of Chive, My Tzong-Yeorg Lin, who helds botl positions concrrrenily,

Nowe 20 The Compory's Execurive Fiee President, We Feng-10 Hiwmg, leff offfice on May [, 2003, 1o be replaced by Mr. Siwon O, Deeng,

Nowe 3: The Comipary's Execaive Vice President, Wr Kuavg=51 Sive, lefi office on Jameary §, 2003, o be replaced e Mre Joseph C.F Shieh,
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Subsidiaries

e Mega Financial Holding Company —

| NT$ Thousnad

!:hung I:I.!.ing E-ill.s R il ot E»c:ri1s.l.nrernarinna| Chung Kuo The |Ir1rer"||:|rinn-:|!_ .
Finance Corporation Securifies Ca., Lid. Insurance Co., Ud. [l Commercial Bank of China
100% 100%
Irvestment Amound: Imvestrment Amount;
35,841,045 5485047 3,111,660
Barits Holdings International
Limited Futures Co., Lid,
-
| s 100% China Products
|rrenstmient Amounk: s Inveskment Amount: =
1,266,633 333,333 Trading Co.
ng L
Irvvestment Amount:
47 936
Barits Investment 5] Securities [Global) Cathary Invesiment &
Services Corp. Holdings Lid. Warehousing Ltd.
Rl 9.98% Bl 100% :
Irvestment Amounk: Ivwashmant Aot YUhg-SHIW
333,694 | Nz Industries Co.
B 25.22%
Irvestment Amount:
444,640
Chung Hsing International Securifies Cathay Investment & Development
Securities Corp. Investment Consulting Co., Lid. Corporafion (Bohomas)
T
Irrvesstment Amaound: Irrvestment Amecunt: d‘ILI‘IQ ¥in
4,150,720 94,048 941,507 Insurance Agency Co.
- 100%
Irrvestment Amount:
Y 12,808
CTB Financial Management Ramledt Finance
& Consulting Co., Lid. Haldings Inc. Intesnational Commercial
- 9997% 100% Bank of Cathay{Canada)
Ivestment Amaound; | Irvestment Amaunk: | 1005
24,849 4]
- Invvasimant Amount:
| 476,484
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Il Scope of Business

Mega Financial Holding Company

The Company's businesses are investment and
The

Company may invest in the following enterprises:

management of the investee companies.

banking enterprises , bills finance enterprises, credit
card businesses, trust enterprises, insurance
enterprises, securities enterprises, futures enterprises,
venture capital investment enterprises and other
enterprises recognized by the competent authority

that are related to the financial sector.

_ Dec. 31, 2002 Unit: NT$ '000s/share

Major Business Investment at Book Value

Investees

Items Cost(million)  (million)
Chiae Tung Bank Development ¢, 105089 54930968

Banking
?ggﬁr:ﬂ:gg“ﬁj' Securities 3,541,734 3,111,660
g:;‘gge”gg?pﬂ'r'gﬁm Bils Finance  34727.664 35,841,045
Barlts Securifies Conp, Securities 5785226 5685047
Commerciol Bark of Ching C”JS%?S"‘" Brennt R
Chngiolmaance  Nontle o i g
Maondex Talwan Inc. Swggr;?l”e 50,000 50

The Company may apply to the competent
authority for permission to invest in other business
activities not listed above, but it shall not itself

engage in the operations of such business activities.

As of December 31, 2002, the Company has the
following six subsidiaries: Chiao Tung Bank, Barits
International Securities Co., Ltd., Barits Securities
Corp., Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation, the
International Commercial Bank of China and Chung
Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. The Company's long-term

investments are summarized as follows:

Stock Held

Accounting
Worth
Number of Shares % of ownership

Method

Eqquity
2,714 887 B38 100% 54,930,948 method
411,474,000 100% 310660  COuty
method
Eqyuity
2.811,441,084 100% 35,841,045 meihad
Ecyuity
492 411,000 100% 5,685,047 method
Eqquity
3,786,100,000 100% &2,088, 55%

method

Ecyuity
434 897 7246 100% 418,343 method

Cost
4,000,000 1294% Bl

Nate, Bariis International Securities Co,, Lid, Bariis Secyriles Corp, and Chung Hsing Secwvittes Co., Lid, (the Company s sil-subsidian) were

Jormally merged to become Baris International Securities Co., Lid ar the end of January 2003,

Chiao Tung Bank

A. Major Business Activities
* Investment banking business: including equity and
venture capital investments, financial consulting

business, and securities underwriting business.

* Commercial banking business: including all kinds
of deposit, loan and guarantee business, trading
financing, remittance business, offshore banking

business, short-term bills business, foreign

exchange trading, safety deposit box business,
book-entry government bond business, electronic

banking, and internet banking business.

*» Consumer banking business: including credit card
business, consumer loans, home purchase and
maintenance loans, private banking, and credit

insurance consumer loans, among others.

* Trust business: including money trust, custodian

services, trusteeship for bond issuances, and

Oiperaning Repon
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distribution of trust fund beneficiary certificates.

® Engaging in other related activities subject to the

approval of the central competent authority,

B. Major Operating Results for 2002

* Lending Operations

For the year 2002, Chiao Tung Bank's total credit
outstandingiincluding loans, guarantees and
acceptances) amounted to NTS5441.04 billion, this
being 1.93% more than the NT$432.685 billion
recorded in 2001. Of this total, medium- and long-
term development credit amounted to NT$354.981
billion, or 80.49% of total credit outstanding, and
met the Bank's requirement as prescribed by the
Chiao Tung Bank Act that stipulates that medium-
and long-term development credit shall amount to

at least 70% of total credit.

* Long-term equity investments
Total long-term equity investments for 2002
amounted to NT$20.692 billion, an increase of
2.68% over the NT$20.153 billion for 2001, The
Bank's investment operations are chiefly centered
on equity investment and venture capital
investment. The former is intended to promote
those investment projects with significant market
potential by providing cash directly, whereas the
latter is for the purpose of investing in venture
capital corporations so as to make them effective
channels for private capital and expertise in high-
tech industries. At the end of 2002, the Bank had
made equity investments involving a total sum of
NTS514.435 billion in 93 enterprises. Of this total,
the IC semiconductor industry accounted for
16.14%, telecommunications for 12.80%. the
optical and electronics industry for 17.91%, energy
and power generation for 5.28%, petrochemicals
for 3.03%, precision machinery and automation for
2.16%, biotechnology and pharmaceuticals for
3.22%, electronic components for 1.85%,

aerospace for 1.48% and others for the remaining

16 | Annual Reporn 20402

3.74%. In addition, the Bank funded a total of 32
venture capital corporations, 18 of which were

located in Taiwan and 14 overseas,

* Deposits and Financial Debentures

During 2002, the total volume of deposits
amounted to NT$270.563 billion, a slight decrease
of 0.33% compared with the NT$271.450 billion
for 2001, In order to lower the cost of funds in
2002, the Bank actively soliciting various types of
demand deposit, which totaled NT$37.516 billion,
reflecting a growth of 10.51% over 2001. The Bank
issued financial debentures in line with its funding
requirements. For the year 2002, total financial
debentures outstanding amounted to NT$59.230
billion, representing a 41.98% increase over the
NT$41.717 billion for the previous year. Currently
the Bank is taking over most of the stock settlement
business of Barits International Securities Co., Lid.
At the end of December 2002, the Bank was the
major settlement bank for 15 branches of Barits
International Securities Co.. Ltd., whose clients'
average outstanding deposils were in excess of
NT$550 million. The Bank will continue to
actively seek after such business, in order to

increase its demand deposits.

* Foreign exchange business

The volume of the Bank's foreign exchange
business undertaken during 2002 amounted to
US$42.729 billion, which was US$3.26 billion or
8.26% higher than the US$39.469 billion targeted
for the year, and also US$6.602 billion or 18.27%
higher than the corresponding US$36.127 billion
for the previous year. The Bank's import and export
operations during the year also increased by 9.87%
and 6.91%, respectively, as compared with 2001.
The Bank's Offshore Banking Branch and three
overseas branches have each been granted
permission by the Ministry of Finance's Bureau of

Monetary Affairs to engage in cross-Strait financial



transactions, and correspondent relationships have
been formed with a number of banks on the
mainland China. The Bank will continue to
strengthen its cooperative relationships with
correspondent banks, improve the guality of its
services, and actively handle OBU and cross-Strait

banking business.

» Consumer banking business
In order to strengthen the development and
administration of consumer banking operations, the
Bank set up a "Retail Banking Department” in July
2002, At the end of December 2002, total
consumer loans outstanding amounted (o
NT$13.19 billion, representing an increase of
NT$7.55 billion or 133.87% over the
corresponding amount at the end of June 2002,
Commissions in relation to consumer loans for the
whole of 2002 amounted to NT$21.426 million, of

which NT$18.288 million is related to the second

half of the year, reflecting a 483% increase over
the NT$3.138 million for the first half of the year,
In addition, in November and December 2002,
after the Bank started to promote insurance
products, insurance commission income amounted
to NTS3 million.

» Trust business

In response to the promulgation of the Trust
Business Law, the Bank has made every effort to
develop its trust business through the development
of new financial products. In 2002, securities taken
under custodianship averaged NTS285.561 billion,
reflecting an increase of 11.28% over the
NT$256.608 billion recorded in 2001. The volume
of business undertaken in 2002 in regard to non-
discretionary trusts for investment in local mutual
funds and overseas securities amounted to
NT$4.501 billion, this being a 70% increase over

the corresponding figure for 2001.

Unit: Thousonds of MT daollars

Breakdown of Operating Revenues 2000-2002

2002 2001 2000
il Amount % Amount % Amount %
Interest incoms 19,801,849 S8.97% 28,164,808 I5N% 0,240,813 BLR
Commisions P26,935 120% 212,630 24585 942,765 2.55%
Securifies brokerage revenues &0.567 0.21% 103,203 0.28% 213,754 0.58%
ain on sales of securities 1,246,169 4.32% 1,720,034 4 .59% 15%.583 0.43%
Gains on foreign exchange 76,630 0.27% 84,388 0.23% 122,404 0.33%
Gains on long-term equity investrments &467 757 22.43% 6,276,576 167 4% 5,733,834 14.14%
zains oninvestments in fund management 70,497 0.24% 78837 0.21% 7801 00
Other aperafing revenues F7.134 0,34% 155,577 0.41% 84,781 (,24%
Total Operafing Revenues 28,829,540 100.00% I7.4946,751 100.00% 37007735 100.00%

C. Plans to Develop Mew Financial Products public auctions by courts.

¢ Launching accounts receivable factoring. ® Developing structured financial derivative products.

® Extending start-up loans to small enterprises. ® New kinds of trust business, such as foreign

® Assisting enterprises with merging and the currency trust funds for investment in foreign

provision of funds. securities, pecuniary trusts under specific and

® Developing new kinds of consumer banking individual management and utilization, insurance

business. includine car loans. loans for Toreien compensation trust, securities trust and real estate
siness, g s, . g

workers and loans for houses purchased through trust, and so on;

Operaning Report | 17



® Developing new electronic banking business. trading in shares on its own account was far from

® Other kinds of business within the scope of the ideal. However, due to the ongoing decline in
law that are seen as necessary and which can interest rates as evidenced by several reductions in
generate a profit. interest rates on the part of the Central Bank, the

Company's gains from trading in bonds had played

Barits International Securities Co., Ltd. a significant role in its overall profitability for the

A. Major Businass Activities year.

® Securities brokerage in TSE and OTC. » Securifies Brokerage

wos i . aline, .
e > Although the stock market index and market

¢ Securities underwriting. turnover both increased during the first half of 2002,
® Acting as agent for securities services. they both declined during the second half of the year
* Securities financing services. due to the economic growth rate not being as

: - expected and there being as yet no real sign of an
® Foreign securities brokerage. P e e

s . . economic recovery. Total fee income for the year
® Other securities-related business with the approval

. from brokering activities amounted to NT$693
of the competent authority.

million, which was an increase of 35.35% or NT%$181

® Concurrently engaging in securities-related futures e et .
y engaging million over the NT$512 million recorded in 2001.

business.
* Intermediary brokerage (IB) for securities-related  ® Securities Underwriting
futures trading. The securities market remained bearish during

B. Major Operating Results for 2002 2002, resulting in a decline in willingness on the

part of publicly offered companies to enter the

* Securifies Deﬂlmg capital market, which significantly impacted the

Due to the lackluster economic conditions that Company's income from underwriting. Total

prevailed in Taiwan throughout 2002 and a stock income for the year from underwriting amounted
market index that declined over the course of the to NT$32 million. an increase of NT$15 million

year, the income generated by the Company from over the NT$17 million recorded for 2001.

Linit; Thousands of NT dollars

Breakdown o
ltsm 2002 2001 2000
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Brakerage & securities financing cormmission 92807 SBITR 511,356 389% 841,930 43.01%
Underwriting commission 12914 1.09% 17,320 1.32% 43,737 2.24%
Gaing on sales of securities - underwrifing 19,552 1.65% - - - -
Inferest incarme e 2305% 253,774 19.31% 483435 TR
Gains on issues of stock warrants - - 2117 1.A1% %202 14.95%
Gains on futures confracts - - 62,885 4.79% 5207 0.27%
Other operating revenuss 54,541 4 559 46,613 JA5% 43495 223%
Gains onrising securities prices 1.433 0.12% 176,571 13.44%

Mor-operating incame 132,158 11.13% F24.333 17.07% 242916 12,445
Total Revenusas I 1E7.028  100.00% 1,314,06% 100.00% 1.952.724  100.00%
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C. Plans to Develop New Financial Products
® Developing equity-related investment products as
the competent authority further opens up the

market for new products.

® Enhancing the efficiency of marketing channels of
the group to provide customers with a greater
variely of investment products.

® Actively developing overseas business, in order to

serve the overseas investment needs of clients.

Barits Securities Corp.

A, Major Business Activities
® Securities brokerage in TSE and OTC.

® Securities dealing.
® Securities underwriting.
® Acting as agent for securities services.

® Other securities-related business with the approval

of the competent authority.

* Concurrently engaging in securities-related futures

business.

® Intermediary brokerage (IB) for securities-related

futures trading.

B. Major Operating Results for 2002

* Securities Dealing
Due to the global economic recession in 2002, and
the unspectacular performance of the high-tech
industry, market sentiment remained generally
bearish except the first quarter in which there were
relatively more opportunities to make profits.
Consequently, the profitability for the year as a
whole from dealing in stocks left much to be
desired. In terms of dealing in bonds, because the
ULS. Federal Reserve successively lower interest
rates, which caused Taiwan's Central Bank to
follow suit thereby bringing local interest rates
down further, interest rates on bonds significantly
declined, and hence profitability from trading in

bonds markedly increased.

* Securities Brokerage

During 2002 the local securities market remained
bearish. While during the first half of the year the
stock market index increased and transaction
volume markedly expanded, during the second half
of the year, however, because the economic
recovery had still not taken place, the stock market
index consistently declined, as did transactions
volume. The Company's income from brokering
was consequently affected, and brokerage fee
income for the year as a whole amounted to
NTS277 million, which represented an increase of
NTS56 million or 25.34% over the corresponding
NT$221 million recorded in 2001,

* Securities Underwriting

Because of the lackluster performance of the
Taiwan economy throughout 2002, the number of
publicly offered companies that applied for a listing
either on the stock market or the OTC markel or
that sought to raise funds in the securities market
did not markedly increase, and hence the
Company’s income from underwriting also failed to
rise significantly. Thus revenue from underwriting
for the year as a whole amounted to NT5250
million, reflecting an increase of NT$113 million
over the NT$137 million recorded in the previous

year.

C. Plans to Develop New Financial Products

® In line with the competent authority's opening up
of the market to new products, the Company will
introduce new products including equity linked
bonds, and will engage in ETFs and share options
ele,

® To enhance the efficiency of markeling networks,
the Company will develop a wider variety of
investment and financial products.

® The Company will develop "one-stop shopping”
financial planning service for institutional

investors.

Oiperaning Repon
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Breakdown of Cperating Revenues 2000-2002

2002
ltem

Amount

. Brakerage cormmissian 277415
Lndernwriting cormmission 127,165
Gains on sales of securities- Dealing 79,020
Gaing on soles of securities- Undemriting 122878
Interest income 197,821
Dividend income 17,689
Gains on lssues of stock warrant 164,762
Incorme from futures commision &, 180
Gains on futures confracts 14,320
Other operating revenues 11,483
Mon-operating income 180,644
Total Revenues 1,199,577

Linit; Thousands of NT dollars

200 2000

% Amount % Amount %
23.13% 221,28 8.55% 454,859 2313%
10.40% 85,026 19% 140,307 7.14%
6,555 . . 71.589 J.64%
10.24% 52,036 2% 8%0,5%2 45.30%
14.4%% 252,449 2.75% 140,371 8.16%
1.47% 10,643 041% 23.334 1.19%
13.74% 179,850 &.75% - =
0.52% 5,653 0.22% 748 0.04%
1.1%% 82,726 1X0% &6.707 1W%
057% 1,451,605  56.09% 1,209 0.06%
15.06%F 244,650 2.33% 155,971 7RIR
100.00%, 2587919 100.00% 1,963,931 100.00%

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation
(CHBFC)

A. Major Business Activities

® Brokerage, dealing and underwriting of short-term
debt instruments and financial debentures.

® Notary services for short-term debt instruments and
financial debentures.

® Guarantee or endorsement services for short-term

debt instruments,
® Brokerage for inter-bank call loans.
® Financial consulling services.

® Proprietary trading in government bonds.

B. Major Operating Results for 2002

* Guarantee service for commercial paper

In terms of guaranteed issues of commercial paper,
the total amount of guaranteed commercial paper
for all bills finance companies combined
outstanding at 2002 was
NT$517.921 billion. Of this total, CHBFC
accounted for NT$161.024 billion, or a market
share of 31.09%.

December 31,

* Business in the primary market

Purchases of commercial paper for all bills finance

Annual Reporn 2002

companies together amounted to NT$6,930.917
billion. The for CHBFC came to
NT$1,760.705 billion. or a market share of
25.40%.

total

*Trading in the secondary market

Total trading in commercial paper in 2002 for all
bills finance companies combined amounted to
NT$34,144.313 billion, of which the total for
CHBFC was NT$6,911.943 billion, or a markel
share of 20.24%.

. Plans to Develop New Financial Products

® In order to minimize the risk arising from
fluctuations in interest rates, and to expand the scale
of operations, CHBFC will trade in financial
derivative products on its own account. The trading
vehicles will range from interest rate swaps and
forward rate agreements to interest rate options and
other financial derivative products approved by the
competent authority. CHBFC expects to be trading in
interest rate futures once the Taiwan Futures

Exchange launches the product of interest rate future.

® Since the competent authority on April 2, 2002

promulgated the Rules Governing the Bonds



el ale el

Breckdown of Operating Revenues 2000-2002

m— Amount
Gain on sale of investments in bills and bonds 5,577 084
Commissions 1,721,985
Interest income 617,237
Gains from long-term equity investments -
Other income 2068696
Tetaol Revenues B.123.014

Unit: Thousands of NT dollars

2001 2000

b Amount % Amount %
68.66% 6709866 TISYR 4399643 T3.40%
21.20% 1.583.238  17.346% 1012365 17.00%
7807 584,435 £41% 479,065 7995
- 106,499 1.17% = -
2.54% 133820 1.47% 26,338 1.61%
100.00% F7.562  100.00% 5594415 100.00%

Investment for Bills Finance Companies, which
now allows bills finance companies to invest in
convertible bonds, CHBFC has in accordance with
the above regulation set up its own operating

guidelines for investing in convertible bonds.

® On February 11, 2003, the competent authority
further lifted the restrictions on brokerage and
trading of corporate bonds by bills finance
companies. CHBFC has submitted its application
to the competent authority for developing the

business, and expects to gel the approval soon.

® CHBFC will also engage in convertible bond assel

swaps and repurchase agreements business,

International Commercial Bank of China
A, Major Business Activities

» Commercial banking business

Including all kinds of deposits, loan and suarantee
business, trading financing, remittance business,
offshore banking business, short-term bills
business, foreign exchange trading, safety deposil
box business, book-entry government bond
business, various kinds of ATM debit card business
and electronic banking, and internet banking

business.

* Consumer banking business

Including all Kinds of credit card business,

consumer loans, student loans, home purchase and

maintenance loans, private banking, car loans, and
credit insurance consumer loans, among others.

* Trust, investment and financial consulting business
Including all kinds of trust and investment, agency,
securities underwriting and brokerage, distribution
of trust fund beneficiary certificates, gold and
silver bullion and coinage; as well as financial
planning services in relation to large private
investments, and financial consulting services for
major public infrastructure projects.

*» Others

Engaging in other related activities subject to the

approval of the central competent authority.

B. Major Operating Results for 2002
* Deposits
The volume of deposits in 2002 amounted to

NTS554,898 million, an increase of 9.983% over the
NTS304, 549 million for 2001.

* loans

The volume of credit outstanding in 2002
(including loans, guarantees and acceptances)
amounted to NTS53537,513 million, which reflected
a decline of 1.59% as compared with the
NTS546,190 million recorded in 2001.

* Foreign exchange business

Total foreign exchange business undertaken in
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2002 amounted to US$130,752 million, an increase The volume of securities taken under custodianship
of 23.20% over the US$106,128 million for 2001. in 2002 amounted to NT$222,185 million,
The volumes of import and export business both representing an increase of 23.41% over the
increased by 3.019% and 5.92%, respectively. over NT$180,039 million recorded in 2001. Total
the previous year. business undertaken involving non-discretionary
'Hon-performing — trust funds for investment in local mutoal funds

and foreign securities amounted to NT$7,390
The total amount of non-performing loans outstanding

as of the end of 2002 was NT$11.905 million, while

the non-performing loans ratio was 2.36%,

million, while business undertaken in the capacity
of acting as agent for the sale of local mutual funds

amounted to NT$30,654 million.

* Long-term equity investments « Consumer banking
Long-term equity investments outstanding at the
end of 2002 amounted to NT$9.388 million, which
compared with the NT$10,141 million at the end

of 2001 represented a decline of 7.43%.

Total consumer loans outstanding at the end of
2002 amounted to NT$63,496 million, a decline of
15.82% over the corresponding figure for 2001.
Consumer fee income for the yvear amounted to
= Trust business NT$459 million.

Unit: Thousands of MT dollars

Breckdown of Operafing Revenues 20

2002 2001 2000
Amount b Amount % Amount o
Interest income 10,613,680 B84.12% 44,662,552 85.64% 47 438,004 BABET
Commissions 3,246,008 A.7% 3009230 5.79% 3,338,020 6.25%
Gains on sale of securifies - . 1. 4%Z868 2B5% -
Gains on foreign exchange 1,344,427 3697 1,656,378 318% 1,716,865 328
Incarms on equily invesimeants 404,167 L% P8, 549 1.85% 445,580 0.67%
Others 784,255 2.16% 350,792 0.67% 435,162 0.80%
Total Operating Revenues 36,395,238 100.00% 52,150,369 100.00% 53,385,631 100.00%
C. Plans to Develop New Financial Products - Develop asset management accounts and a
* Electronic banking business customer service center system for the bank.
= Corporate Internet banking. - Issuing platinum credit cards.
= Internet banking, telephone banking, and foreign - Issuing stored-value cash cards.

exchange trading. = Issuing American Express stored-value cards.

- Internet banking electronic fee collection = Issuing smart credit cards and IC credit cards.

business. < . :
= Participating in tendering for the Planned

* Consumer bunkmg business Freeway Electronic Toll Collection Project.

- Wealth management: Providing tailor-made - Setting up a card-manufacturing center, to

financial planning services for clients. increase business efficiency.

- Fancy variable universal life insurance product.

22 | Annual Reporn 2002



# Trust and investment business
= Insurance compensation trusts.
- Testamentary trusts,

= Trust funds under specific and individual

management and utilization.
- Educational trust funds for children.

- Financial assels securitization business,

Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd.
A. Major Business Activities
= Fire insurance,

= Marine cargo insurance,

= Marine hull insurance.

= Fishing vessel insurance.,

= Automobile insurance.

= Awiation insurance.

= Muclear energy insurance.
- Engineering insurance.

= Liability insurance.

= Credit and bond insurance.
- Accident insurance.

- Miscellaneous insurance.

NT$660 million, or 12.64% of total gross direct
wrilten premiums.

= Automobile insurance: premiums totaled
NTS1,451 million, or 27.80% of total gross
direct written premiums.

= Aviation insurance; premiums totaled NT$361
million, or 6.92% of total gross direct written
premiums.

- Engineering insurance: premiums totaled
NT$595 million, or 11.40% of total gross direct
written premiums.

= Miscellaneous insurance: premiums totaled
NT$666 million, or 12.77% of total gross direct

wrilten premiums.

# Reinsurance business

Total reinsurance premiums amounted to NTS890
million which, when compared with the NT$923
million recorded in 2001, represented a decrease of
NTS33 million or 3.58%, of which:

= Domestic inward reinsurance premiums totaled
NT$762 million, or 85.68% of total reinsurance
premiums.

= Foreign inward reinsurance premiums (including
those for Guam office) totaled NT$128 million,

B. Major Operating Results for 2002 or 14.32% of total reinsurance premiums,

* Direct written business . .
C. Plans to Develop New Financial Products

Total gross direct written premiums amounted to
NT$5,219 million, representing an NTS331 million
or 6.77% increase over the NT54,888 million
recorded in the year 2001. Within this total were

the followina:

- Fire insurance: premiums totaled NT$1.201
million, or 23.01% of total gross direct written
premiums.

= Marine cargo insurance: premiums totaled
NT$285 million, or 5.46% of total gross direct
wrillen premiums,

= Marine hull insurance: premiums totaled

= Resident fire and earthquake insurance with
personal accident endorsement.

= Automobile third-party accident multiple liability
insurance,

= Automobile third-party liability insurance with
compensation expense endorsement.

= Automobile excess liability insurance.

= Automobile physical damage non-depreciation

insurance.

= Individual personal accident insurance with
named event increasing benefit amount

endorsement.
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= Group personal accident insurance. expenses endorsement.

= Group personal accident insurance with medical - Travel personal accident insurance with named

expenses endorsement. evenl increasing benefit amount endorsement.

= Giroup personal accident insurance with named - Consumer's loan credit insurance.

event increasing benefit amount endorsement. - Credit card comprehensive insurance.

- Travel personal accident insurance. - Individual personal travel comprehensive
= Travel personal accident insurance with medical insurance.

Linit: Thousands of NT dollors

Breakdown of Operating Revenues

g 2002 2001 2000
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Fire insurance 1,201,034 BO%R 1.017.159 HEE 27418 21.56%
Marine carge insurance 285114 5.46% 69T &,08% 300,132 &.60%
Marine hull insuranace 659,372 12.64% 422,454 8.54%, 308,410 6T7%
Automchile insurance 1,450,783 7 B0% 1,588,454 32.50% 1.497.556 J294%
Aviafion insurance 341,387 6925, 291,847 5.97% 413,737 EANES
Engineering Insurance 594,907 11.40% HEe 7.96% 382,381 B.42%
Other insurance 666,207 12.77% B81,828 18.04% 661,408 14.56%;
Total insurance premium income 5,218,808 100.00% 4,887,734 100.00% 4,543,442 100.00%
Feinsurance premium income 59,600 FI3. 268 FEI 014

Total &, 108,414 5811022 2,926.556

1] Market and Business Conditions

A. Market Analysis
Since the second hall’ of the year 2000, with both

the Taiwan economy and the international economy
experiencing a recession, the non-performing loans
of financial institutions have steadily increased.
Overbanking has also resulted in excessively fierce
competition within the financial sector. All of these
factors have caused under-performance of financial
institutions. The government has successively passed
a series of financial laws, including the Law
Governing Merger of Financial Institutions and the
Financial Holding Company Act, in an attempt to
resolve these problems and lay a sound base for

financial reform in the future.

The government has already approved the
establishment of 14 financial holding companies, of

which 13 are now listed on the stock exchange and
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one on the OTC market. It is expected that the
establishment of these financial holding companies
will reshape Taiwan's financial environment. The
size of financial institutions will increase, and the
ownership of the financial institutions may become
more concentrated. Financial business will also
become more diversified, and efficiency will be
More

internationalization will be visualized. Following

enhanced. competitiveness and
Taiwan's accession to the World Trade Organization,
there has been increased competitive pressure from
large foreign financial institutions, and hence in the
future Taiwan's financial institutions will either
develop by becoming larger and larger or else will
attempt to adhere to the principle of "small is
beautiful." For those financial institutions that fall
somewhere in between these extremes and do not
have any particular competitive advantage will have

difficulty in generating profits. They will either be



taken over by other financial institutions or forced to
withdraw rom the market. It is expected that market
consolidation in the banking industry will continue

to take place over the next few years.

B. Operating Objectives
® Strengthening cross selling to provide "one-stop

shopping" for comprehensive financial services.

® Installing common IT platforms, to raise the

efficiency of management in each line of business,

® [ntegrating the Group's various resources,
strengthening organizational effectiveness, and

pursuing the highest profits.

® Continuing to enlarge the scope of the business, to

enhance business profitability.

C. Favorable and Unfavorable Factors
over the Long Term

Favorable Factors

® Each of the subsidiaries of the Mega Financial
Group has unique attributes that cause them to
stand out within each respective domain. For
instance, Chiao Tung Bank plays a key role in
Taiwan's investment and industrial banking, being
specialized in industrial investment and corporate
financing, The International Commercial Bank of
China has become distinguished in the foreign
exchange business and overseas business, and
holds an important position in the syndicated loans
market and corporate financing. Chung Hsing Bills
Finance Corporation is the leader in the domestic
bills finance industry. Barits International
Securities Co., Ltd., which also encompasses Barits
Securities and Chung Hsing Securities, is one of
the major securities companies in Taiwan. It has
also been the market leader in Taiwan in terms of

its initial public offering and overseas fund raising

business, as well as the 13th largest player in the
brokerage market. Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd,
the first state-owned financial institution privatized,
was ranked 9th in Taiwan in terms of non-life
insurance premium income in 2002. Even though it
is still considering acquiring a life insurance
company or a commercial bank with a relatively
strong consumer banking business, the Mega
Financial Group is already well-established in
terms of the financial services that it offers, and it is

also one of the leading financial groups in Taiwan,

In a way that differs from other financial holding
companies, the Mega Financial Holding
Company's subsidiaries are specialized in
corporate banking. As in the case of consumer
banking business in which a cross-selling strategy
has been adopted, the Group will establish a wide
variety of product lines, so as to provide corporate
clients with "one-stop shopping” opportunities, For
instance, through cross-selling and collaboration of
the subsidiaries in the Group, the Group is able to
provide corporate clients with investment, lending,
foreign exchange, bills and insurance business
opportunities. In addition, because of the strong
complementarities that exist between these
different lines of business, diversified and stable

profitability can be achieved.

Al present, around 26% of the Company's shares
are owned by government and enterprises
controlled by the sovernment, and thus the
Company is in a position to help state-owned
financial institutions with their meraer activities, as
well as provide technical assistance, thereby
promoting other business of the Group.
Furthermore, because of its background of high

percentage of shares owned by the government, the
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Company has a good image in the market. In
particular, this is even more beneficial in relation
to its international credit rating, and can help lower

its funding cost.

Unfavorable Factors

® Before becoming a subsidiary of the Group, each
of them does not have much relationship, and each
was a leader in its own field. When compared with
other financial holding companies, especially those
whose subsidiaries were originally all part of the
same group, the task of integrating the activities of

Mega's diverse subsidiaries has involved

shares of corporate banking and consumer
banking, with profitability being easily affected by
economic conditions., However, the International
Commercial Bank of China has been granted the
mission to integrate the Group's consumer banking
business. For instance, in 2002, the International
Commercial Bank of China issued 700,000 credit
cards, whereas Chiao Tung Bank had only issued
20,000, Chiao Tung Bank's credit card business
will be combined with that of the International
Commercial Bank of China. The International
Commercial Bank of China aims to issue 1.3

million credit cards during 2003.

considerable expense and effort. However, by ® Following Taiwan's accession to the WTO, the

adhering to common operating ideas, and doing . . .
covernment is speeding up the process of opening

everything possible to complete the integration . " ; :
e o el et up Taiwan's financial markets. Large foreign

v - g - . ‘I’ H - ey o = B . E R R . t n B
process, once the changeover is successful, the financial institutions with their transnational and

5 Wl 1 3 anciz ) r PR g
benefits will surely surpass those of other financial cross-industry experience, financial innovation and

holding companies. superior technology will enter domestic financial
® The Group's consumer banking business is still markets, which will result in increased competition

rather weak, and there is a huge gap between the for local financial institutions.

Il Human Resources

Number of Employees

_ December 31, 2002

Number of Employees Average Age Average Years of Service

24 41 .04 035

Educational Background

_ December 31, 2002

Ph. D. Masters University College High School (Vocational) Others
Mo. %% Mo. % Mo. %% Mo. %% Mo. %% Mo. %%
0 0 5 19 14 42 4 15 1 4 0 4]
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Risk Management
Mega Financial Holding Company

A. The Group Risk Management Model

Risk, performance and cost are the three
business factors that the Mega Financial Group
considers to be the most important, In order to
effectively manage the risks involed with business of
banks, bills finance, securities and insurance
companies, and ensure that each of the Group's risk
is controled within tolerable limits, the Mega
Financial Holding Company will reexamine the
Group's risk management structure and establish an
overall risk governance mechanism while

aggressively integrating its marketing strategy.

In seeking to effectively control the various
kinds of risk within the Group and maximize
shareholders’ benefits, the Group has set up a Risk
Management Committee. It is the responsibility of
this committee to scrutinize risk management
strategy, the defining and adjustment of authorization
limits, and the deployment of and adjustments in
relation to risk assets. The Committee is also
responsible for supervising the risks of the holding
company and each of its subsidiaries, ratifying risk

management reports as well as evaluating the risk-

adjusted performance of the Group.

In order to ensure that the Group's risk
management system can be securely established and
effectively administered, the Company has formed
the Information System Integration and Technical
Support Task Force, organized by the Electronic
Data Processing Department, to be in charge of
integrating risk monitoring models and related
information systems among subsidiaries, and
designing and installing the database and operating
platforms for the risk measurement system between
the holding company and its subsidiaries, A Risk
Management Department was set up on May 1,2003,
with responsibility for monitoring, evaluating,

managing and reporting on the Group's overall risk.

B. Focus of Risk Management Policies in the Future

Many of the adverse effects of the business risks,
which would otherwise prevent the Group from
achieving its objectives, can be lowered or even
completely removed through the setting up of a
system of internal controls and management
procedures. However, in order to get hold of the
Group's online risk situation and conform to the
recommendations of the New Basel Capital Accord
as promoted by the Basel Committee, the Company
will use quantitative methods to measure and control
market, credit and operational risks. Furthermore,
through the rationalization of the return on risk, the
Group seeks to gsenerate the greatest benefits for its
investors in terms of operating performance afier

adjusting for risk.

For these reasons, the Group will make every
effort to quantify risk, establish appropriate
risk/return ratios, and maximize shareholders’ equity

as its risk management objective.

C. The Scope of Risk Management

All of the on and off-balance sheet risk of the
holding company and its subsidiaries, including market

risk, liquidity risk, credit risk, operational risk, country
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risk, information system risk and legal risk will be
covered by the Group's risk management system. Of
these, market risk, credit risk and operational risk will
be evaluated by quantitative models that comply with
the "Minimum Capital Requirements” standards of the
Basel Committee for 2006,

Chiao Tung Bank (CTB)

The International Commercial Bank of
China (ICBC)

A. Risk Management Policies

CTB and ICBC adhere to the rules prescribed by
the competent authority in evaluating risks, and
verifying the risk limits permissible for each type of
business. To ensure that each risk management
policy is effectively promoted, each bank regularly
holds meetings of its Credit Evaluation Committee,
Investment Evaluation Committee, Risk
Management Committee and Assets and Liabilities
Management Committee to review the outcome of
each kind of risk control, and speedily adjust risk

control measures accordingly.

B. Methods for Evaluating and Controlling Risk

The following methods are used to control risks of

the banks within the Group:

1. Foreign Exchange Risk and Trading in Financial
Derivative Products

In order to strengthen its management of
individual country risk, Chiao Tung Bank has drawn
up its Guidelines for Managing Credit Limits for
Country Risk to evaluate the upper limits of total
credit amounts of country risk, monitor the total
amounts and analyze the associated risk exposure.
The amounts of credit extended in relation to country
risk may be divided into credit lines and transaction
limits. ICBC has defined upper limits on the ratios of

country risk to the Bank's net worth for individual
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countries, as well as an upper limit on the ratio of the
country risk for all countries combined to the bank's

tolal assels.

CTB and ICBC have drawn up trading limits and
position limits in order to control risk in relation to
trading in the foreign exchange market, foreign
money market, foreign capital market and the market
for financial derivatives. Limits have also been
placed on the Dealing Room and each trader,
including daylight limits, overnight limits,
transaction limits for each counterparty, stop-loss and
ete. Foreign exchange position limits and trading

limits are also imposed on overseas branches.
2. Controls over Non-performing Loans

While each bank is responsible for the collection of
its non-performing loans, the Company plans to set
up a asset management company to handle non-
performing loans in order to enhance the efficiency
of the collection process. At December 31, 2002,
CTB's non-performing loans amounted to
NTS12,545 million, representing a non-performing
loans ratio of 3.07%, while 1ICBC's non-performing
loans totaled NT$11,905 million, or 2.36% of total
loans. These ratios are both well below those for

domestic banks in general.
3. Concentration of Credit Risk

CTB and ICBC have set risk-related limits both in
percentage terms and actual amounts on loans to any
particular industry, individual, related individuals
and related parties in order to diversify risk and
maintain asset quality. The measures of risk

managements are as follows:
(1) Industry Controls

CTB and ICBC have set up the percentages of their
loan portfolios that can be attributed to any particular
industry based on the operating policies for that vear,
economic conditions, the situation being faced by the

industry and the economic outlook. Adjustments to



these percentages are made either every quarter or
every hall-year based on forecasts for the subsequent
half-year. Efforts are made to avoid concentraling
loans in industries that are similarly affected by
economic cycle. As of December 31, 2002, none of

the limits imposed had been exceeded.
i2) Controls over Lending to the Same Client

Both CTB and [CBC handle lecans to one
individual or related parties, in accordance with the
provisions of the Banking Law. In regard to loans to
related enterprises, besides complying with the
requirements of the Banking Law, CTB has drawn up
its own Operating Guidelines for the Extending of
Loans by Chiao Tung Bank to Related Enterprises, in
which it sets credit limits for related enterprises,
including that for unsecured credit. These limits are
stricter than those prescribed by the Banking Law in
order to avoid excessive concentration of risk. ICBC
evaluates the credit of local business groups on the
basis of five different levels, for which it imposes
limits on the amount that can be lent to each business
group. The loans extended to any business group
may not exceed 40% of the Bank's net worth. As of
December 31, 2002, none of these limits had been

exceeded.

When deciding to whom to extend loans, CTB and
ICBC give careful consideration to policies, safety,
profitability, liquidity, the public benefit and growth.
Approving a loan involves a very strict process,
including, for instance, whether sufficient collateral
has been provided. In addition to carefully examining
the borrower's creditworthiness, business and
financial situation, the proposed use of the funds,
sources of repayment, the ability to repay and the
credit enhancement, much emphasis is also placed on
the feasibility of the project, the allocation of funds,
the skills, organizational and managerial abilities of
the borrower, and the industry's development

prospects, If the industry experiences sudden

changes, the banks may require, cash-to-capital
increases and flexibility in adjusting interest rates
based on the financial condition of the borrower,
Having granted a credit line, the banks will regularly
review and monitor the circumstances of the client,
in order to ensure that conditions of the loans are

met.
4. Controls over Securities Investment

In addition to complying with the stipulations of
Article 74(1) of the Banking Law, CTB and ICBC
have drawn up overall limits on the amounts that
may be invested in securities. Limits in the form of
percentages have also been sel in regard to the
holding of a particular share, shares of the same
business group or shares for a particular industry. As
of December 31, 2002, none of these limits had been

surpassed.
5. Others

This includes methods such as asset and liability
cap analysis, interest rate sensitivity analysis and

liquidity risk management.

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation

A. Risk Management Policies

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation has, in
accordance with the Regulations Governing Bills
Finance Companies, drawn up policy guidelines in
relation to risk management to serve as a standard

and model for the management of risk.

B. Methods for Evaluating and Controlling Risk
1. Credit Risk Management

The Corporation's Credit Policy Guidelines serve
as the basis for its approval of loans and risk
management. It has also established lending
procedures, regulations soverning the management

of credit risk, standards for evaluating collateral. All

Oiperaning Repon

9



3

of these are practical ways of managing credit risk.
In addition, the Corporation’s operating guidelines
for reviewing credit, regulations regarding the
examination and management of loans with
relatively high credit risk, as well as regulations to
do with the collection of non-performing loans make
up the regulatory framework once the loans have
been made. At the end of December 2002, Chung
Hsing Bills Finance Corporation’s non-performing
loans amounted to NT$2,552 million, or a ratio of
1.56%, which was significantly lower than the

average for the industry as a whole.

2. Market Risk Ma nagement

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation's risk
management in relation to its bills business is based
on daily controls on trading spreads and daily
evaluation of portfolio. In order to ensure that the
potential losses of each item do not exceed
maximum loss limitations, the Corporation performs
interest rate sensitivity analysis every day. In
accordance with interest rate forecast, the
Corporation adjusts its position of bills and notes,
and their maturities, in order to avoid excessive
liquidity gap on the same day. The Corporation has

also drawn up regulations to manage liquidity gaps.

Barits International Securities Co., Ltd.

A. Risk Management Policies

Barits International Securities Co., Ltd. (formerly
International Securities Co., Ltd.), criginally set up a
risk management task force that later was renamed
the Risk Management Office, responsibe for risk
management. This unit is manned by specialists,
including those in data processing, to identify risks
and to design risk control models. Barits Securities
Corp. not only develops software for measuring risk,
but in addition to determining traditional factors

sensitivity, position limits, and profits and losses,
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ete., also calculates the value-at-risk for the
company. Both companies' risk managements are
operating on the basis of legal requirements, safety,
profitability and liquidity. Emphasis is placed on
research and development, business strategies and
coordination among business departments. In this
way, each type of business including securities
brokering, investment banking, trading in securities,
futures brokerage and financial derivative products,

can experience balanced growth,

After the consolidation of the three securities
companies (Barits International Securitites Co., Ltd.,
Barits Securities Corp. and Chung Hsing Securities
Co., Ltd.), Barits International Securities Co., Ltd. has
had a clear duty segregation among its front desk, back
office and middle office (risk management functions) .
The Company's Risk Management Office has specific
responsibility for measuring risk and for conducting
daily risk management operations. In addition to the
Risk Management Office’s assisting, specialists within
each department and information systems personnel
bear responsibility for overall planning in relation to
risk control and for developing risk models. The
Treasury Department is responsible for the back office
operations, while the Auditing Department is
responsible for internal controls and for auditing
operating procedures. There is therefore a clear division
of responsibilities among the different functions in
relation to risk management, At its regular quarterly
meetings, the Asset Allocation Committee examines
the various risks, and makes recommendations for
adjustments. If there is an emergency, the Committee

will call a meeting at short notice.

B. Methods for Evaluating and Controlling Risk

The approach adopted by Barits International
Securities Co., Ltd, in relation to its risk management
involves the business unit being responsible for
evaluating risks and the potential gains, compiling

an operating handbook, and clearly describing how



responsibilities for different products are divided
among staff. The Risk Management Office then
quantifies this risk and then, based on the capital
adequacy ratio, calculates each business unit's
trading limits and loss limits, which are then
forwarded to the Asset Allocation Committee for
verification. Subsequently, the Risk Management
Office enters the various limits that have been
approved into the risk management system. which is
linked up with the trading system and the market
information system, so that controls can be

implemented instantaneously on line.

The risk management system developed by this
company has four functions: monitoring controls
over trading, the measurement of risk, the simulation
of actual conditions, and the senario analysis.
Besides being able to provide an analysis in market
value, position limits, profits and losses, value-at-
risk, and back testing, it is also able to calculate on
line profits and losses, and provide risks and returns

information.

C. Risk Management Reports

Each business unit furnishes the Risk Management
Office with reports on daily transactions and risk

positions. The Risk Management Office then
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compiles these risk management reports, making
necessary disclosures, and then forwards these to

higher levels of management,

Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd.

Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. has established
insurance undertaken information system to control
insurance risk. This system is based on guidelines
that have been drawn up for each kind of insurance.
Before a policy is issued, the syvstem automatically
conducts an examination o determine whether a
limited insurance coverage is required, and
establishes a retention amount according to the risk
exposure. The system can automatically control the
expense and commission rates according to the type
of insurance, the source of business and the risk
exposure. It can also provide various Kinds of loss
rates analysis which are used to adjust Company’s
policies, When handling emergency reinsurance
business, Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. will not
issue a policy until the procedures of reinsurance are
finizhed.

Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Ltd. has installed
procedures regarding authorization limits, and has
also established authorized compensation levels.
Now that it is a part of the group, this company will,
based on the type of business involved and in
accordance with the financial holding company's risk
management policies and guiding principles,
formulate its own in relation to credit risk, market
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk, human

resource and crises management.
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Il Business Plans for 2003

Mega Financial Holding Company

® Actively integrating the business activities of the
Group's subsidiaries and sub-subsidiaries,
eliminating and reducing the duplication of
resources, and when deemed necessary combining
organizational activities or rearranging group
assets. Reanalyzing the Group's competitive
strengths, identifying and developing the
Company's business niches and industries with
future potential, and pulling out of industries in
which the Company is not competitive,

® Continuing to evaluate investments that
complement the activities of the Company or that
are able to create its synergy, and, by means of
mergers, investments or strategic alliances,
enlarging the group's financial scope, in order to
provide a comprehensive range of financial

SErvices.

®* In accordance with the speciality of each of the
Company's subsidiaries, providing enterprises with
a more complete range of services, while also
actively seeking to promote consumer banking

business.

® Strengthening the Group's risk management, and
especially paying attention to the Company's
capital adequacy (or BIS) ratio, by raising and
utilizing funds in the most appropriate manner.

# By disposal of the Company's treasury stocks to
strategic investors, to increase the Company's
international competitiveness and provide
customers with a more complete and up-lto-date

financial services.

® Establishing the Group's common IT platforms,
integrating the various information systems, and
strengthening the management of each of

operations.

@ Strengthening the creation of a superior business
image for the Group, with a view to becoming the
most outstanding financial holding company in
Asia,

Chiao Tung Bank

A. Business Plans for 2003

® Actively developing its four core businesses,
namely, lending, investment, foreign exchange and
consumer banking business, to enlarge the scale of
operations.

# Strengthening its cross selling with other
subsidiaries within the Group, to provide
customers with a wide range of financial services.

® Increasing fee based income to achieve the target
that fee based income accounts for more than 5%

of the total revenues in 2003,

B. Operating Policies for 2003

® Lead managing or participating in syndicated
loans, to expand market share and seek to be
among the three largest players in the syndicated

loans market.

# Strengthening cooperation with sound venture
capital companies domestic and abroad, to increase
the sources of investment, and encouraging the
development of the local high-tech industry.

® Actively developing various foreign exchange
businesses with high yielding, such as letter of
credit forfaiting business and derivative financial
products,

® Actively engaging in offshore banking and cross
Strait banking business, in order to achieve a target
growth rate of 20%.

® Promoting Treasury agent business, and custodian
service in relation to the government book-entry
bonds and institutional funds, in order to increase

profitability.

Business amd Funding Urilization Plans
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® Strengthening cross selling with the Group's
subsidiaries, providing clients with comprehensive
services by integrating investment, credit,
securities, and bills businesses.

® Improving the Bank's funding structure by
attracting more demand deposits with a targeted
arowth rate of above 10% to lower the funding

cosL

Barits International Securities Co., Ltd.

A. Business Plans for 2003

® Achieving a targeted net income after tax of NTSI1
billion for 2003 with the consolidation of the three
securities companies.

® Actively involving in the mainland China market.

® Using the Group's resources to effectively integrate
business activities and establish a complete
marketing network, with a view to becoming
ranked among the top 5 securities companies

within a period of three years.

B. Operating Policies for 2003

® Brmkeruge business: Increasing market share by
50%., seeing 100% growth in brokerage services
for institutional investors, and being ranked among
the top ten brokers by the end of 2003. Increasing
the volume of business but not increasing risk,
with equal emphasis on both market share and
profitability.

* Underwriting: Cultivating professional staff in this
field and giving them a broad training, with a view
to developing financial advisory business.

* Bonds: Focusing on R/P and R/S business, and
actively developing asset securitization products.

* International business: Assisting Taiwan
enterprises with their overseas fund raising and

merger activities. Promoting asset management
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business in Hong Kong to manage the overseas
funds and mainland China funds of Taiwanese
people, and making every effort to become an

international investment bank.

* Private banking business: Striving to become a
major private bank in Taiwan within 2 years by
taking advantage of the Group's resources and IT
platforms.

* Developing financial products: Designing new
financial products, with a view to becoming a
financial product development center within two
years in Taiwan. In addition, helping clients to
arbitrage and hedge their positions to build up the

company's brokerage business.

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corporation
(CHBFC)

A. Operating Plans for 2003

® Implementing internal restructure to grasp the
concept of integrated selling and develop new
business opportunities for CHBFC.

® Taking strict control of the credit quality of its

clients to maintain the soundness of its assets.

® Issuing corporate bonds in due course to diversify
its lunding sources,

® Carefully studying interest rate trends to maintain
profitability, as well as further sharpen its bills and

bonds trading skills.

® Developing new products and conducting staff
training to boost professional knowledge among

staff.

B. Operating Policies for 2003
® In order to strengthen their financial structures and
make adequate provision for bad debts, CHBFC will

dispose of a portion of its government bonds holding.

® CHBFC will make every effort, through joint



marketing meetings with the Group's subsidiaries,
to research and desian financial products that meet

customer needs.

* CHBFC will establish a model for trading in
financial derivative products and a risk
management system, and keep track of
relationships between underlying products and the
prices of financial derivative products, in order to

seek out arbitrage or hedging opportunities.

International Commercial Bank of China

A. Operating Plans for 2003
® Expanding its core businesses such as international

financing, syndicated loans and foreign exchange.

® Pushing forward wealth management and
investment banking business to improve its profit

structure.

® Introducing more customer-oriented consumer
banking products so as to satisfy diverse needs of

the customers.

® Conducting joint marketing efforts by integration

of units within the Group.

B. Operating Policies for 2003

® In order to enhance the synergies ol the Group, the
Bank's securities business to be transferred to
Barits International Securities Co., Ltd., with the
Bank serving as the principal settlement bank. In
addition, encouraging the Group's subsidiaries to
make use of the Bank's overseas branch network in

dealing with related foreign exchange business.

® Appraising the operating performance of each
business unit, closing down overseas branches that
have not reached their scale of operation, and
applying for certain domestic branches to be scaled

down to mini bank branches.

* Promoting cross-Strait correspondent banking and

OBU business, to create new deposits and foreign

exchange business.

#* Promoting accounts receivable factoring, to help
clients in financing, transferring of credit risk,
accounts receivable management, and debt

collection services.

# Paying close attention to the large-scale investment
plans of industrialists, and actively seeking to lead
manage or participate in syndicated loan business.

® Continuing to issue Mega Business Funds, and
achieving the goal of issuing European Convertible

Bonds within two years.

# Strengthening consumer banking business, wealth
management business to provide financial planning
services.

# In line with the launch of bank assurance business,
increasing the numbers and expertise of financial
planning personnel, and placing increased

emphasis on marketing skills,

Chung Kuo Insurance Co., Lid.
A. Operating Plans for 2003

® Boosting the volume of new business with
emphasis both on quality and quantity to ensure
underwriting profits, consolidating and stabilizing
core businesses while actively developing new

products so as to enhance operating performance.

#® Drawing out cross-selling strategies as a member
of the Group, actively exploring new markeling
channels to raise revenues while strengthening
employee training to improve service quality.

#* Actively managing its investment portfolios to
improve fund performance and raise the financial

returns.

® Reinforcing actuarial functions to control operating

costs and secure solvency.

Business amd Funding Urilization Plans
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B. Operating Policies for 2003

® Abiding by guidelines for underwriting, reinsurance
and claims processing to control business quality;
cutting down expenses while increasing retention

amount to raise underwriting profits.

® Speeding up the development of Personal Accident
or other personal insurance products to meet the

market demand and enhance competitiveness,

® Enhancing the functions of Internet website;
expanding e-business opportunities through
Internet marketing channels.

® Continuing the efforts of globalization; exploring
overseas markets to be in line with the
government's south-bound policy and win over
businesses of Taiwan investors at abroad through
the Company's overseas offices.

® Improving the interaction with clients; providing
customer-oriented high quality service.

® Strengthening human resources planning;
reinforcing the education and training of personnel;
improving the professional knowledge and skills of

employees to manifest the effects of human

resOurces managemen L.

® Building up a comprehensive marketing and
service networks for policyholders to upgrade
service standard and operational efficiencies while
improving business compelitiveness,

® Realizing the functions of internal control and
auditing; speeding up premium collections and
shorten the time of recovering claims from

reinsurers to increase the cash turnover rate.

® Monitoring the expenditures incurred by all classes
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of business through actuarial systems to enable the
fine-tuning of management strategies and boost

competitiveness.

[ﬂ Plans to Acquire or Dispose
of Real Estate or Long-term
Investments in 2003

The Company still does not have any definite plans
to acquire other financial institutions in 2003,
However, should there be financial institutions
whose business activities are capable of truly
complementing those of the Group, this does not rule
out the possibility that they might become the
Company's subsidiaries. To expand the group's
synergies, the Company's current invesiment plans

are as follows:

® Planning to invest a sum of NT579.412 million in
the Taipei Financial Center Corporation, resulting
in an expected 0.397% shareholding.

® Planning to acquire from subsidiary Barits
International Securities Co., Ltd and other parties,
shares of Central Securities Investment Trust
Corporation (CSITC) with a sum of approximately
NT$435 million and make CSITC become the
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

® Planning to invest a sum of NT5100 million in the
Taiwan Bills & Bonds Central Depository Clearing
Corporation, thereby acquiring a 5% shareholding.

® The Company's subsidiary Barits International
Securities Co., Ltd. plans a cash-to-capital increase
of NT$5.207.988 million, with the whole amount

being subscribed by the Company.
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Il Financial Highlights

_ Expressed in MTH milion, except per share

2002
FINAMNCIAL COMIDTION
Paid-in Capital 110,488
Total Shareholders' Equity 142,537
Teatcal Assets 1,649,625
PER SHARE
Earnings Per Shore 1.06
Sharehalders’ Equity Per Share 15.08
Dividends Declored Per Share 10392
FIMAMCLAL RATIO
Capital Adeguocy Ralio 119.61%
Return on Assefs 0.746%
Return on Shareholders' Equity B.E4%
Met Income to Operation Revenues 7.34%

Pro Forma Statement of Income

_ Expressed in MT3 milion, except per share

ltem 2002 2001
Amount o Amount )

OPERATING REVEMLIES 10,627 469 100.00% 12,781,218 100,00

Gains on Long -ferm Stock Investments 10,427 449 100.00% 12781.218 100.00
OPERATING AND ADMIMIETRATIVE EXPEMSES 127, 284) (1.20%)

Administrative Expenses {127,009 (1.20%)

Other Operating and Administrative Expenses 275 -
OPERATING PORFIT 10,500,385 98.80% 12.781,.218 100.00
MNOM-CPERATING INCORE 2,730 0.28%
NOMN-CFPERATING EXFEMSES {105.638) [0.99%)
MET INCOME BEFORE TAX 10,424,450 F8.09% 12,781,218 100.00
IMCORE TAX 1477 (0,01 %)
CONSOLIDATED MET INCOME 10,424,003 F8.08% 12,781,218 100,00
BASIC EARMNING PER SHARE 101 - 1.2 =
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[ﬂ Consolidated Financial Statements

DIWAN, ERNST & YOUNG

English Transkation of @ Report Criginally ksued in Chinsse

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Mega Financial Holding Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mega Financial Holding
Company (the Company; formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.), and its subsidiaries as of December
31, 2002, and the related consolidoted statements of income, changes in stockhelders' equity and
cash flows for the financial period from February 4 (inception date) to December 31, 2002, These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management, Cur responsibility is to
express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on cur audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with "Regulations for Auditing and Certification of
Financial Statements in the Banking Industry by Cerfified Public Accountants” and cuditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of China on Taiwan. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonakle assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on o test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial
statermnent presentation. We belisve our audit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinion.

In our oginicn, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairty, in all material
respects, the financial position of Mega Financial Holding Company and its subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2002, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the financial period from
February 4 to December 31, 2002 in conformity with the guidelines for preparation of financial reports
by financial holding companies, securities companies and securities issuers and accounting principles
generally accepted in the Republic of China on Taiwan,

;QW&!U M 2

February 14, 2003
Taipei, Talwan
Republic of China

Motice to Readers
The accompanying consolidated fimancial stalements are intended only to present ke financkal position ard resulls of operafiors and cash
flows in accordance with accounfing principles and practices gernerally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any ather
jurisdlictions, The sfandards. procedurss and praclices fo qudit such finoncial statements are those generaly accepted and applied in the
Repubdic of Ching an Takvan.

Fimancul Reports | 39



Mega Financial Holding Company (Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.) and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheet
December 31, 2002

_

December 31, 2002

Assets Notes
Amount %
Current Assets
Cash V-1 $ 47.383.41% 287
Due from bonks and Central Bank Iv-2 299,779,354 1817
Short-term investments in monsy market instruments-net II'& V-3 252,951,708 1533
Receivables-net Il & 14 47,936,048 291
Oither curent assets 4,763,314 029
Total Current Assats 652,814,045 .57
Loons and Exchange Bills Megotioted and Discounted Il & -5 890.175.311 5357
Long-Term Investments
Long-term investments-net II& V-5 43 722 590 301
Fixed Assets Il & -7
Costs:
Land 10,309,671 0.63
Land impravements 2,847 -
Buildings and sfructures 11,813,144 072
Machinery and equipment 1,137,568 007
Office and fransportation equipment 2787 494 017
Micelloneous equiprment and leasehold improvements 1,546,924 0.09
Asset revaluation increment 2,531,097 0.15
Total costs and asset revaluation increment 30.130.741 183
Less: accumulated depreciafion (7.021,101) [0.43)
23,109,840 1.40
Unfinished construction and prepayments for equipment 480,518 003
Total Fixed Assets-MNet 23,590,158 1.43
Other Assets
Infangible assets Il 20,752 001
Rental assets I 33,342 -
Guarantee deposits paid 4,836,695 029
Overdue accounts receivable-net Il & V-8 10,346,761 0.43
Feinsurances llabilty reserve confributed 2,125 -
Defered expanses 503,481 003
Defered income tox asels-net I 2,205,744 0.14
Resfricted cassels 13,078,847 079
Assets to be adjusted 75,151 0.01
Miscellansous assets 2,057,318 0.12
Total Other Assets 33.322.421 202
Total Assets $1.649,424,525 100.00

The gecompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial sfraements,
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Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity

Current Liahilities

Shori-term borowings and cormmercial paper poyable

Due to Central Bank and other banks
Fayahles
Advance receipls
Other current labilifies
Total Current Liabilities
Deposits and Remittances
Financial Debentures-Met
Borrowings from Central Bank and Other Banks
Long-Term Liakilities
Corporate bonds poyable
Development loan fund
Appropioted loan fund
Reserve for land revaluation increment fox
Accrued pension liability
Total Long-Term Liabilities
Cither Ligbilities
Guarantee deposits received
Reserves for operafions
Ofhesrs
Total Other Liabilities
Total Lickilities
Stockholders' Equity
Capital stack
Commaon stock
Capital Surplus
Retained Eamings
Llegal reserve
Special reseve
Unapproprioted retained earmings
Totol Retained Earnings
Equity Adjustments

Unrealized decline in market value of long-term stock investments

Cumulative franslation adjustments
Total Equity Adjustments
Treasury Stock
Total Stackholdars' Equity
Commitments and Conlingencies
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equiry

Notes

Vg
%-10
I & =11

Y-12

-13

[W-14

-15

-7
-16

=17
Il & Iv-18

Il & M-19

Wl

Expressed in Mew Taiwan Thousand Dallars

December 31, 2002
Amount %

$ 13248708 0.80
275,349,986 16.69
86,054,574 5.22
1,058,416 0.06
104,724 0.0
375,818,410 2278
B4, 439,617 52.%
&4, 209,200 3.89
155,593,810 9,43
15,000,000 051
1,067,147 0.04
9,744,824 0.59
1,317,349 0.08
6122 —
27,125,442 1.54
3,567,640 0.22
11,335,314 0.49
5,008,332 0.30
19,901,304 1.21
1,507,087,805 9134
110,488,402 670
47,925,341 3.03
5,077 444 0.31
354,947 0.02
6,239,231 0.3
11,671,644 0.71
|66,241) —
258,034 0.02
191,793 0.02
(29.740,440) {1.80)
142,534,720 .46
$1.549,624,525 100.00

Fimancil Rt
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Mega Financial Holding Company (Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.) and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Income Statement
For the Period from February 4 to December 31, 2002

_ Expressed in New Taiwan Thousand Dollars

February 4 to December 31, 2002

Notes
Amount o
Operating incoms

Inferest income 1 $ 52.001.754 &0.62
Premiums income 1 6,088,104 710
Reinsurance commissions income 473755 0.55
Feinsurance payrments refund 1.740.497 203
Recoverad premiums and reserves 1,499,675 1.98
Recovered special reserve 316873 037
Facoverad Indemnily reserve 337 004
Fees income 1 6,906,574 805
Gains on sale of securities 226,633 0.27
Warehousing & shipping incoms 4,105 -
Securifies brokerage income 352,679 0.41
Gains on frading notes and bills 6,453,296 7.52
Gaing on long-term stock investments Il 6.805,304 793
Gaing on real esfate investrments 4,904 001
Exchange gains 1.421,066 1.66
Gains on frust investments 70,497 0.08
Caaing on issuanoe of stock warants 164,762 0e
Gains on futures confracts 52,796 0.06
Cither operating income F67.314 1.13

Total Operating income 85,786,315 100.00

Operating Costs

Inferest expense [28.273.011) [32.94)
Insurance expense [3.846.417) [4.51}
Underwriting expense [14,4%7) {0.02)
Cammissions expense [626,667) {0.73)
Prawision far insurance indemnities [3.467.591) [4.03]
Unegrned pramium reserve [1.64%,122) {1.92)
Pravision for special reserve (134,071} {0.18)
Prawdsion far indermnity reserve [30.088) 0.04}
Processing fees (514,884) {0.60)
Securifies brokerage expense |3.264) =
Loss on real estate invesiments |.030) =
Provisions expense I [18,332777) (19.04)
Loss on decline in value of frading securities [255,034) (0,30}
Other aperating costs [62.223) {0.07)

Total Operating Costs [55.236,082) (44.38)

The acoompanying rotes are an infegral part of the consolldated financial sfatements
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_ Expressed in Mew Taiwan Thousond Daollars

Motes

Gross Operating Profit
Operating Expenses
Business expenses
Administrative and general expenses
Oiher operaling expenses
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Profit
Mon-operating Income
Inferest income
Exchange gains
Renfal incomes
Investrnent gains
Gains on property exchange
Miscellansous income
Total Mon-operating Income
MNon-operating Expensas
Interest expense
Property exchange losses
Asset refirerment losses
Miscellaneous expenses
Total Mon-operating Expenses
Mat Income before Tax
Income Tax Expense Il & Iv-20)
Met Income before Cumulative Effect of Chonges in Accounting Principle
Cumulative Effect of Changes in Accounting Principle I
Consolidated Met Income Fram January 1 to December 31, 2002
Subsidiaries’ Met Income before Exchonge of Shares
Consalidated Met Income from February 4 to Decamber 31, 2002

Bosic Earnings Per Shore | Expressed in Mew Taiwaon Dollors) Iv-21
Pro-forma disclosure based upon the assumption that short-term
invesiments in money market instruments are accounted for under lower of

tobal conselidated cost or ool consclidated market value methed:

Consalidated Mt Income

Basic Earnings Per Share | Expressed in New Taiwan Dollars)

Pro-forma disclosure based upon the assumption that shares issued by the
Company and held by subsidiarizs are nat treated os freasury stocks:
Censolidated Met Income

Bosic Earnings Per Shore | Expressed in Mew Taiwaon Dollors)

February 4 to December 31, 2002
Amount %

30,550,233 35.62
[10,850,035) [12.68)
14,497,850} {5.24]
(636,767} [0.74)
(15,984,652 118.44]
14,545,581 1698
10,775 0.01
48,644 0.08
4,458 0.01
3273 0.04
249,849 0.9
1,160,905 135
1,527,370 1.78
[75.949) 10.09]
{15,520} 10.02)
{18,859 {0.02)
14.035.398) 14.70]
[4.145,82¢) (4.83)
11,947,125 1393
11,932,525} {2.25]
10,014,400 11.68
542,291 0.63
10,556,891 12.31
(4,258,818 14.57)
§ 4298075 7.34

Before Tax After Tax

$ 106 %

104

§ 5756261 § 5,755,784

b3 087 b

0.27

$46286350  }6,2B5873

L] 105 %

105
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Mega Financial Holding Company (Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.) and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
For the Period from February 4 to December 31, 2002

_

et Capital Surplus
No. of Shares Amount i

Balonce s of February 4, 2002 2,915,608 § 29155078 § 30094294
Adjustment for subsidiaries’ income in prior year = = {128,220}
Capitalization of capital surplus 291,581 2.715.408 (2.915,608}
Shares issued due to exchange of shares 7.841.671 TBA16716 =
Premium from merger — — 22873741
Adjustments for long-term stack investments accounted for
under equity method:
Changes in capital surplus = = 1,132
Changes in cumulative franslaticn adjustments == == ==
Lnrealized loss an decline in market value e e e
af long-term stock investments
Met Income from February 4 2002 to December 31, 2002 = = =
Transfer from gains on investments accounted tor under = = =
equity methad prior to exchange of shares

Stocks bought back = = =

Stocks held by subsidiaries that are treated as treasury stocks = = =

Balance as of December 31, 2002 11,048,840 § 110,488,402 45925341

The secompanying sotes are an infegral part of the consalidaied finarcial sfatements,
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Mega Financial Holding Company (Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.) and its Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period from February 4 to December 31, 2002

_ Expressed in New Taiwan Thousand Dollars

February 4 to December 31, 2002

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Consolidated net income from Fabruary 4 to December 31, 2002 § 6298075
Subsidiaries' net income before exchange of shares 4258814
Consolidated net income from January | to December 31, 2002 10,554,891
Adjustments:
Depreciation and provisions expense 9754814
Going an disposal of assets [212.219)
Gaing on investments accounted for by equity method (275,152)
Cash dividends received from investes companies accounted for by equity method 3,184,734
Increase in bills purchased for frading purposes (112.674,817)
Increase in receivables |3.862.645)
Increase in other curent assets (480,112
Increcse in deferred income fox asets {40,%00)
Increase in payables 14,030,675
Decrease in odvance receipts (385,959
Decrease in other curent liakilities [106,044)
Increase in forward exchange receivable and payable for frading purpose [2.512.599)
Provision for pension reserve (504,730
Others {45,074)
Met cosh used by operating acfivities [83.571.13%)
Cash Flows from lnvesting Activities:
Decreoss in due from Ceniral Bank and other banks 24,003,114
Increcse in koans and exchange Bills negofiated and discounted [23.231.143)
Increase in long-term investments [3.156.184)
Payments for fixed assets {1.186,347)
Pracesds from sale of fixed assels 376,588
Decrease in other assets 2041622
Increases in forward exchange receivable for non-frading purposes {2.148.813)
Increcse in shart-term investments [519.192)
Others 17.792
Met cash used by investing activities {3.802,565)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Increase in due to Central Bank and other banks 11,719,393
Increass in deposits and remittances 70,250,475
Increcse in financial debeniures 3,581,700
Increase in orowings frorm Central Bank and other banks 11.034,807
Decremse in long-term liakbilities {5.825,517)
Increcse in ather igbiities 1,119,743
Distrioution of cash dividends and cash bonus |7.462.398)
Increase in forward exchange payable for non-trading purposes 4,701,493
Incraase in rates issued under repurchase agresment 1,240,353
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_ Expressed in Mew Taiwan Thousond Daollars

February 4 to December 31, 2002

Increcse in shart-term borowings
Increase in shar-term notes and bills payable
Stock buyback
Oithers
Met cash provided by financing octivities
Effect of exchange rate changes
Increase in cash
Cash balance at beginning of the period
Cash balance o the end of the period
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:;
Cash paid for inferest
Cash paid for incorme fax

15,453,000
15544211
(28,327 ,032)

(750)

75,131,478

210,229

7.968.003
39,415,616

$

47,383,619

3

31,424,888

$

1,613,905

The accompanying notes are ai integeal part of e consolidated fnancial siatements.
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Mega Financial Holding Company
(Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.)and its Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2002
(Expressed in New Taiwan Thouwsand Dollars unless otherwise stated)

The reader is advised thar these consolidated financial sratements have been prepared originally in Chinese. In the event of a conflict between these

[financial statements and the eriginal Chinese version or difference in interpretation berween the two versions, the Chinese langnage financial

statements shall prevail.

Background
Wega Financial Holding Company (the Company} was formed by
Chige Tung Bank Co., Lid (CTB) amnd Barits International Securities
Co., Lid, (BIS; formerly International Securities Co,, Lid.} on
February 4, 2002 in accordance with the Financial Holding Company
Law and other related laws through exchange of shares. On Aungust
22,2002, Chung Hsing Bills Firance Corporation (CHBF) and Barits
Securities Co., Lid {B5) joaned the Company through exchange of
shares. Om December 31, 2002, the Company acquired a 100% equity
stake both in International Commercial Bank of China (ICBC), an
investee of the Company originally accounted for under equity
method with a 28% stake, and Chung Koo Insurance Co., Lid, (CKI).
Om the same date, the Company changed its name 'rom CTB
Financial Holding Company Co., Lid, to Mega Financial Holding
Company. Shares of the Company have been listed and traded on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange since Febroary 4, 2002, The Company is
mainly engaged in investment activities approved by the governing
authontics and management of the mvestee companies. Backgrounds
of the Company's subsidiaries are summanzed as follows:
(1) CTE was established in mainland China in 1907, five years
hefore the founding of the Republic of China (ROC), and moved
o Taiwan alomg with the central govermment of ROC im0 15949,
CTB resumed its operation in 1260 to continue its role of
assisting the ROC government in implementing economic
programs. CTHE's shares were traded on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange since September 1996 and the bank completed its
privatization process in September 1999, On Februpary 4, 2002,
CTH was transformed into a TS owned subsidiary of the
Company through exchange of shares in accordance with the
Financial Hoelding Company Law and was delisted from the
Tarwan Stock Exchange. As a development hank, CTE 15 mainly
engaged in exiending mediom- and long-term loans, equity and
venture capital investments, international banking and trust
related business. In line with the government's cconomic policy
and economic development programs, CTH also assists major
industries in developing strategies for improving the industrial
infrastructure and promotes industrial development of the naticn
(2} Incorporated on October 19, 1989, BIS (fomerly [nternational
Securities Co,, Lid.y became a 100% owned subsidiary of the
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Company on February 4, 2002 through exchange of shares and
changed its pame 1o Barits International Securities Co,, Lid, on
[December 6, 2002, Principal activities of B1S include
underwriting, brokerage amd proprietary trading of secuntics,
margin trading of secunties and bills, issuance of stock warranis,
and brokerage of overseas scouritics.

{3y CHBF, established on May 3, 1976, was 1005 incorporated into
the Company throwgh exchange of shares on August 22, 2002
and was delisted from the Taiwan Stock Exchange accordingly.
CHBF is mamnly engaged in proprietary trading, brokerage and
underwriting of short-term notes and bills and financial
debentures, providing guarantees for shor-term nodes amd blls,
hrokerage of inter-bank call loans, corporate financial consulting
and proprietary trading of government bonds,

(4) Established on July 3, 198%, BS became a 100% owned
subsidiary of the Company through exchange of shares on
Auvgust 22, 2002, BS entered into a merser agreement with
International Securities Co., Lid. on November 5, 2002 with the
effective merger date set on January 31, 2003, The proposed
merger was formally approved by the Securities and Futures
Commission (SFC) on November 28, 2002, Barits Securities
{Hong Kong) Lid., registered in Brinsh Virgin Islands and 1006
owned by BS, 15 mamly involved i asset management and
investient activities,

(5) International Commercial Bank of China (1CBC), formerly Bank
of China, was restructured on December 17, 1971 in accordance
with the Chinese commercial banking regulations. Shares of
ICBRC were onginally traded on the Taiwan Steck Exchange and
was delisted as it became a 1005 owned subsidiary of the
Company through exchange of shares on December 31, 2002,
ICBCs major activities include Toreign exchange, trade linance
and guarantee, trust related business and other commercial
hanking business related to mternational trade.

() Initially established by Bank of China {currently ICBC) in
Movember 1931, CKI merged with the Central Trost of China's
Non-life Insurance Depariment in February 1972 and became an
investee company directly under the Ministry of Finance (MOF),
CKI completed s privatization process on May 5, 1994 and

became a 10040 owned subsidiary of the Company through



exchange of shares on December 31, 20020 CKI's 15 primanly

engaged in general insurance business,
Il significant Accounting Policies

1. Principles for preparation of consolidated
financial statements

(1) Yearly and half-yearly consolidated linancial statements are
prepared as required by the governing authorities. Apart from the
bank, insurance and secunties subsidiaries, accounts of the
investes companies are required to be consolidated mto those of
the Company where the Company directly or indirectly holds
more than 3% of an investee's common stocks and the
respective imvestee's otal assels or operaling revenue represent
mewe than 10% of the Company's exch respective account. For
the subsidiaries not meeting the above-mentioned conselidation
requirements, consolidation is also mandatory if the total assets
of operating revenue of a single subsidiary exceed 3% of the
respective account of the Company, as the total assets and
operating revenue of all the subsidianies that do not meet the
above-mentioned consolidation requirements exceed 309 of the
Company's respective aecounts.

(2) Inter-company transactions are eliminated from the consolidated

financial statements.

(3) Operating subsidiaries included in the Company's consolidated
financial statements and the Company's percentage of ownership
in each subsidiary are as follows:

Subsidiaries %
Chiao Tung Bank Co., Lid. 100,00
Barits Internotional Securifies Co., Lid. 100,00
Chung Hsing Bils Finance Corporation 100,00
Berifs Securifies Co., Lid. 100.00
International Commercial Bank of China 100.00
Chung kuo Insurance Cao.,, Lid. 100,00
Barits Securities (Hang Kong) Lid. (Subsidiary of BS) 100,00

2. Securities purchased

Securities purchased, including investments in government bomls,
corporate honds, convertible corporate bonds, shor-term notes and
bills, equity stocks of listed companies, and muotual Tunds, ane stated
al historical cost and are revalued by the lower of cost or market
varlue method al balance sheel date. Costs of the stocks and mutuasl
funds are calculated by the weighted average method when they are
sold. The other securities are caleulated using the specilic
identification method.

3. Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowance for doubtful accounts 15 estimated based on the

balances of the exchange bills negotiated and discounted, loans,
receivables and overdue receivables on the closing date and their
collectibility, Loans which have been confirmed to be uncollectible

are wrtten off with the approval from the Board of the Directors,

4. Long-term stock investments

Long-term stock investments are stated at historical cost. For the
investee companies in which the Company holds more than 20% of
the voting shares or over which the Company can exercise significant
infleence, the equity method is applied.

The cost method is applied where the Company holds less than
209 of the voting shares and cannot exercise significant influence on
the investee. For stock investments in listed companies, allowance
for valvation losses on long-term investments is made and the
unrealized loss on decline in market value 15 accounted for as a
deduction from stockholders' eguity where the book value of the
investment exceeds the market valee. For stock invesiments in
unlisted companies, investment loss is recognized and the book value
is adjusted downward once the decling in investment value is
confirmed and the probability of a recovery in valee is minimal.

Om disposal of stock invesiments, the cost 15 caloulated with the

weighted average method.

5. Real estate investments

Valuation 15 based on the lower of cost or market value and
revaluation is conducted in accordance with the respective
regulations, Depreciation is estimated according 1o the cost or
revalued price and is amortized over the uselul life.

6. Capital expenditure and revenue expenditure
Expenditures for the acquisition of fixed assets are capitalized.

Leasehold improvements, bond issuance costs and other defermed

charges are amortized over the prescribed period and are charged to

expenses. All other expenditures are charged to revenue as incurred

7. Leases

All leases are treated as operating leases. Leasehold
improvements are stated at cost and amomtized over the lease period.

8. Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

FExcept for land, assets after revaluation are depreciated using the
straight-line method. Ciains or losses on sale or exchange of fixed
assels are recorded as gains or losses on property exchange. CGains on
property exchange were originally booked a5 non-operating income
and the net amount after tax was transferred 1o capital surplus as
required by SFC. From vear 20001 and onwards, o meet the new
requirement of the Ministry of Boonomic Affairs, gains on disposal

of fixed assets are no longer transferred o capital surplus,

9. Intangible assets

FExcess of the cost incurred by acquisition of other companies
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over the book value of the identiliable assets 15 accounted [or as
intangible assets - soodwill which is amortized over five vears using

the straight-line method.

10. Rental assets

Properties leased out as operating leases are stated at cost and
recorded as "rental assets”. Depreciation of the rental assets is
calculated based on the estimated useful life wing the straght-line
method. The resulting rental income afler deducting depreciation

expense is recorded as non-operating income.

11. Stock warrants liabilities

Proceeds received from isswing stock warrants are recorded as
lighilities.  The Company 15 allowed o repurchase those warmants
fronn the market and accounts for such purchases as a reduction in the
stock warrants' liabilities,  Liabilities for stock warrants issued are
valued at market valee at the balance sheet date. The decrease in
stock warrants' liabdlities should be recognized as a gain on isswance
of stock warrants,  As stipulated in the SFC e gulations, the increase
in stock warremts' habilities should be deferred but not recorded as a
loss in the current period if such an increase is less than the
unrealized gain from the increase in the market value of the hedged
securities” position.  However, if the increase in stock warranis
linbilities exceeds the unrealized gain from the imcrease in the market
value of the hedged securities' position, the excess is recoenized as a

loss in the current period.

12. Business provisions

Business provisions include provisions for guarantees, house
account losses and losses on breach of contracts. Provision For
guarantees 15 estimated at 1% of the ending balance of guaranice
accounts but the amount of the provision cannot exceed the total
guaraniee commissions received for the vear. According to the Rules
Coverning Administration of Secunties Firms (RGASE), 10% of the
excess of secuntics trading gains over losses must be provided as a
howse account loss provision on a monthly hasis until the cumulative
halance of such provision reaches 200 million, Such provision can
only be used o offset the excess of secuntics trading losses over
gains. According o the RGASFE, 2% of monthly brokerage
commissions must be provided as provision for losses on breach of
contracts. On July 1, 2000, the SFC amended the mules and requires
that (LOOZE% of the monthly brokerage trading amount be provided
as a provision for losses on bresch of contracts until the balance of
such provision reaches 5200 million. Such provision can only be
used to offset losses on breach of contracts or other losses as

approved by the SFC.

13. Insurance reserves

On December 24, 2002, the Department of Insurance

promulgated the "Regulations on Setting Reserves for Insurance
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Industry®. Rules for provisions of the respective meserves are sel

fouth below:

(1) Uncarned preminm reserve
The entire retained preminm income should be calculated
accordance with the retained risk for the in-force policies or
insured nisk. Unearned premium reserve should be set aside
according o the chamcienstics of each insurance category.
Computation of unearmed premium reserve Tor year 2002 is the
same as that for vear 2000 and is based on the entire retained
premium income and the provision rate prescribed in the
Insurance Law according to the insurance category. The unearned
premium reserve is reversed in the following financial year,

(2) Special reserve
For year 2002, the special reserve falls into two categories,
"catwstrophe special reserve® and "risk special reserve”, and 15 set
aside in accordance with the following:

DCatastrophe special reserve
Catastrophe special reserve is set aside from the retained carned
premiums based on the provision rate prescribed by the Minstry
of Finance (MOF) I the actual retained claims on catastrophes
excecd NTH30 million, the cxcess may be offset against the
catastrophe special reserve. The catastrophe special reserve can
be released with the mwethod prescribed by MOF after being set
aside for 15 vears and the released reserve is treated as income,
2 Risk special reserve

If the actual claim Tor each insurance category after offsetting
against catastrophe special reserve is less than the anticipated
clanm, 309 of the difference between the two shall be set aside as
risk special reserve.
If the actual claim Tor each insurance category after offsetting
against catastrophe special reserve exceeds the anticipated claim,
the excess may be offsel against the risk special reserve. I the
risk special reserve for the respective insurance calegory is
insufficient (o offset the excess, nisk special reserve in other
insurance categories may be used. However, MOF must be
nedilied of the offset amount and insurance category, If the nisk
special reserve sccumulated for each insurance category exceeds
GFE of the gross earmned premiums retained for the current year,
the excess shall be treated as income,

(3) Claim reserve
The claim reserve should be computed based on the losses
incurred but pot reported and those not incurred and not reported
For the retained business prior to December 31, 2005, claim
reserve [or losses incurmed but not reporied should be set aside on
a policy by policy hasis whereas the claim reserve for losses not
incurred and not reported is set aside hased on the retained carned

premiums and the provision rate prescribed by MOE The claim



reserve 1% reversed in the following financial year.
From Janwary 1, 2006 amd onwards, claim reserve for the retained
business should be set aside based on the past claim expenience
and expenses as well as the rules agreed by MOE

(4 Compulsory sutomobile liability insurance
Preminm reserves for compulsory automobile lability insurance
for both cars and motorcveles are set aside i conformity with the
rules stipulated in MOFs Letter Mo 860817977 isseed in 1997
and Letter No 87 IRTHIES issoed m 1998,
The uneamed premium reserve i set aside based on the net
premiums retaimed for the current vear
The special reserve is set aside based on the gross earncd
premium income and the special reserve provision mte caleulated
in accordance with the premivm strecture. Additionally, the sum
of net camed premium income, rENsUrANCe CMMISSION HC0mE,
cloim reserve released and mterest on the special reserve account
after deducting retained claims and the provision for claim
reserve is transferred to special reserve in full. I the resulting
balance 1= negative, the special reserve set aside in accordance
with the premium structure shall be used first to make up the
shortage, followed by the accumulated special reserve released in
previous vears. 1 the halance is stll negative, the amount of
shortage is recorded in the memo account and will be nuwde up
with the special reserve set aside in the following vear
Claim reserve for the retsined business should be set aside on a
policy by policy basis Tor losses incurred but not reported
whereas the claim reserve for losses not incurred and not reported

should be set aside based on the net earned premiums.

14. Pensions

Accounting for pensions is dealt with in accordance with the
Fimancial Accounting Standard No, I8, Accounting Standard Tor
Pensions. Minimum acerued pension liabality and net pension cost must
be recognized based on actuarial calculations. Service costs in prior
penod and pension gain'loss are amortized on the straight line basis

according 1o the average remaining service vears ol the employees

15. Income tax

(1) Inter-period and intra-period income taxes are allocated in
accordance with the Financial Accounting Standard No. 22,
Accounting Standard For Income Taxes, Income tax effects

&l

sing from taxable temporary differences are recognized as
delerred income tax liabilities. Income tax effects arising from
deductible temporary differences, deductible losses and income
tax credits are recognized as deferred income tax assets and a
valuation allowance is made based on the expected realizability
of the deferred income tax assels

(2) Accounting for meome tax credits 15 dealt with in accordance

with the Financial Accounting Standard No 12, Accounting

Standard for Income Tax Credits. Income tax credits arising from
acquisitions of cquipment and technology, research and
development, stall raining and stock imvestments are recognized
in the vear when the expenditures are incucred,

{3} An additional 10°F income tax is levied on the unappropriated
retained camings and 15 recorded as income ax expense in the
vesar when the tax is levied.

(<) Projected mcome tax is estimated hased on the expected taxable
income. Any difference between the tax estimated by the
Company and that assessed by the National Tax Administration

(WTA)Y is adjusted in the year when the income tax is assessed,

16. Capital surplus

According 1o the Company Law, capital surplus arising from share
i=sue premiwm and donations can be capitalized wath the approval Trom
shareholders, According 1o the SFC regulations, capital surplus arising
from share issue premium is allowed 1o be capatalized once a yvear amd is
subyect to a specified lmit In addition, capitalization is protabited in the
vear when the shares are issued

Pursuant to the Letter of Tai-Tsai-Zen (6) No.O9 10003413 issued by
SEC, capital surplus arising from exchange of shares between Nnancial
instintions can be appropriated as cash dividends and capitalized in the
vear of share exchange according to Section 4, Article No.47 of the
Financial Holding Company Law, i the capital surplus anses from the
unappropriated carmings generated prior o exchange of shares, The
capitalization amoum is not subject to the limit stipulated in the Article

Hof the Sccurities and Exchange Law.

17. Apprﬂpriatiﬂn of retained earniﬂgs and
dividend policy

Dividends are distributed not onlvy in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Incorporation which regulate the appropriation
of retained carmings but also the financing requirements of the
Company. According to the Company's Aricles of Incorporation, the
altertax met income shall be vsed 1o offset the scoumulated deficit
first and then be appropriated to the legal reserve at the mte regulated
by the governing authority. The remainder shall be approprated to
the special reserve, il necessary, and an appropriated portion is
retained according to the Company's financing requirements. Any
remaming income will be distnbuted in the following order based on
the resolution from the shareholders,
(1) Dividends

Cash dividends should not exceed 3065 of the todal distributed

amount, and the remainder will be in the form of stock dividends
{2Z) Kemuneration o directors and superyisors

Eemuneration o directors and supervisors should not exceed 1%

of the total distribied amount
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{3) Bonus o employees

Bonus (o employees ranges Itom 2% (o [6%= of the total

distributed amount. Bonus o emplovees can be distribuoted in the

form of cash or stocks based on the sharcholders' resolution.

Employees from affiliated companies may be entitled to the

Company's stock bonus at the Board's discretion.

If there are any negative stockholders” egquity items mecorded by
the Company, such as wnrealized losses on declines in market value
of long-term stock investments and cumulative translation
adjustments, the Company 15 required o sel aside a special reserve
with an amount equal o the total amount of the negative items but
net exceeding the limits listed below belore the earnings are
appropriated.

[ The special reserve set aside For the negative stockholders” items
which occur in the current year should not exceed the sum of after
tax net income generated in that year plus the unappropriated

retained earnings sccumulated for previous vears.

2The special reserve set aside For the negative stockholders” items
which occur in previows vears should not exceed the amount of the
unappropriated retained earnings accumulated for previous vears
minus the amount of special reserve set aside in <D,

According o the regulation stipulated in the SFC's Letter (900
Tai-Tsai-Zen {1y No 170010, the Company is required o sel aside a
special reserve with an amount equal to the excess of the book value
of the Company’s stocks held by the subsidiaries over their market
value. [T the market value recovers in the future, the special reserve

can be reversed by the recovered amount.

18. Treasury stocks

(1) Costs incurred on the stock buyback are debited to "treasury
stocks". Book value of the treasury stocks 1s caleulated based on
the weighted average book value of the common stocks and
preferred stocks and their respective reasons for buyback. The
amount of the deregistered reasury stocks is credited o "treasury
stocks™ and debited to "capital surplus - share 1ssue premium”
and "common stecks", While the book value of the treasury
stocks exceeds the sum of the par value and share issue premiom,
the excess should be first olTset against the capital surplus acising
from transactions of treasury stocks of the same kind and then
debited to retained earmings if the capital surplus s insufficient.
While the book value of the treasury stocks is less than the sum
of the par valwe and share issue premivm, the difference is
credited to the capital surplus ansing from transactions of
treasury stocks of the same Kind, When securities holders
exercise the right of conversion in exchange Tor the treasury
stocks, 1t should be recorded at the book value of the securitics
converted. That is, the book valee of the secunties converted is

considered as the dispesal price of the treasury stocks.
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(2) According o the SFCs Letter (91) Ta-Tsai-Zen (6) Mo 111467,
the stocks onginally bought back by the flinancial institutions in
accordance with Section 1, Article No.28-2 of the Secunties and
Exchange Law and transformed into the Company's shares i
accordance with Article Mo 31 of the Financial Holding
Company Law when the respective financial institutions are
transformed o the Company’s 100% owned subsidianes are
stll treated as treasury stocks of the subsidiaries amd a negative
item wnder stockholders' equity, Those stocks should alse be
treated as the Company's treasury stocks. Other financial
institutions which hold the stocks of the financial institutions
incorporated into a financial holding company through share
exchange and subsequently become the shareholders of the
respective linancial holding company should maintain the
original accounting treatment for those stocks, According o the
SFC Letter (839 Tai-Tsai-Fen (6) No699S0, the Company's
stocks held by the subsidiaries are treated as treasury stocks.

19. Transactions in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are booked in the respective
denominating currencics. The foreign currency denominated assets
and liabilities ansing from transactions other than curmency forwarnds
are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the halance sheet date with
the respective closing exchange rates on that date. Differences arising
from the translation of foreign currency denominated Nnancial
statements are recorded as cumulative translation adjustments under
stockholders' equity

20. Derivative financial instruments

(1) Currency forwards
Foreign currency denominated assets amd liabilities arising from
the currency forward contracts wsed for purposes other than
trading are recorded at the contracted forward rates on the
contract dates. Gains |/ losses on the forward contracts are charged
to current income on the settlement dates, Unsettled forward
contracts at the balance sheet date are adjusted based on the
forward mates prevalling over the respective remaining contract
periods, The resulting translation dilterences are charged to
current income. Receivables and pavables arising from the
forward contracts are offset against each other at the balance sheet
date and only the net amount of receivables or pavables is
recorded,

(2} Inferest e swaps
As no principal amounts are exchanged for interest swaps upon
settlement, the transactions are recorded i the memo account on
the contract dates. For mterest rate swap contracts used lor
purposes other than trading, net interest received or paid upon each
settlement, or accrued on the halance sheet date, is recorded as an

adjustment to imtenest income or expense of the items being hedged.



(3) Foreign exchange swaps
Foreign exchange swaps are on-balance-sheet transactions
Accrued interest income and prepaid intercst expense are
calculated based on the spot rates and forward rates on the
contract dates and are recorded accordingly, Adjustmyents are
made for the acerued inferest income and prepaid interest expensec
al the balance sheet date based on the unamortized portion.

(4) Cross Clrmency swiaps
Cross currency swap contracts entered into for purposcs other
than trading are recorded i the memo account at the nominal
principal amounts on the contract dates. Difference between the
interest received and paid vpon each settlement, or accrued on the
balance sheet date, is recorded as an adjustment 0 revenue or
expense of the items being hedged.

(3) Forward rate agreements (FRA)
Forward rate agreements are used to lock in at anomterest rate for
a speciflied period in the Tuture and are recorded in the memoe
account at the nominal principal amounts or the contract amounts
on the contract dates. Interest expense 15 recognized for each
memith, For FRAS used for trading purposes, difference between
the interest received amd paid is recorded as an adjustment to the
intercst expense. For FRAs used for hedging purposes, the
dilTerence is amtized as deferred interest income (expense) over
the contract period, The memo sccount is reversed at expiration

(0) Futures

Futures are traded according to the regulation set by the Taiwan
Futures Exchange, Only the nominal principal amount or
contractual amount 15 recorded in the memo sccount on the
contract date. Deposits and agent commissions are debited 1o
"guarantee deposits paid" and "prepaid expenses", respectively
Losses on the futures contracts are assessed at the end of each
month and are recognized as imterest expense for the contracts
used for trading purpeses and as exchange losses for those used
for hedging purposes. At expiration, the memo account is
reversed and commissions are charged 0 income or amoized as
gain | loss on the respective hedged item.
(7) Options

An option gives the buver, in return for paving a premium, the
right, but not the obligation, tw buy or sell a specified amount of an
underlying good at a specified price on or before the expiration
date. The nominal principal amount or the coniract amount is
recorded in the memo account on the conteact date. Premiums peid
for call options are recorded as prepaid expense whereas those
received for put options are recorded as deferred revenue, Losses
are assessed at month end, On the expiration date or upon closure
of the option position, the memo account 15 reversed and the

premiums ane charged to income.

{(8) Nom-delivery forwards (NDE)
As the principal amounts are nod exchanged for NDEFs upon
settlement, the nominal principal amounts are recorded in the
memo account. Upon settlement of the contract, gains | losses
arsing from the difference between the contract rate and the spo
rate prevailing on the settlement date are charged to current
income. Unsettled position 15 adjusted boased on the forward e
prevailing over the remaining contract pericd and the resulting
translation difference is recognized as current exchange gain

loss,

21. Recognition of interest, commission and
financial revenues
{1} Bank subsidiaries

Interest revenue from loans is recognized on an accrual hasis,
Interest on overdue loans 15 not recognized until such loans are
collected. Commission revenue is recognized when collected.
{2) Becurities subsidiaries

According to the mules governing financial reporting for scouritics
companies, interest income and expense arising from securities
margin trading, bonds sold under repurchase agreements and
those purchased under resell agreements, and interest-hearing
secunties are recorded as interest income or expense. Financial
income or expense derived from activities other than those

mentioned ahove is recorded as non-operating INcome or expense.

22. Collaterals taken over

Collaterals taken over are stated at the prices paid for the
collaterals and are revalued by the lower of cost or market value
method at the balance sheet date.

23. Contingent losses

At the balance sheet date, il any asset is considered 1o be
potentially impaired or potential obligations have been incurred, the
contingent losses which can be reasonably estimated are reconded as
losses for the current vear. 17 the amount of the losses cannot be
reasonably estimated or the losses are mot likely 1o ocour, disclosure

in the notes o the financial statements is required,

24. Premiums income and acquisition cost of
insurance policies

The insurance subsidiany's premiums income and acquisition cosi

of insurance policies such as commissions and agency cost are

recognized as the income and expenses Tor the pericd when the

respective policies are issued.
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Illl Reasons for and Effects of Changes

in Accounting Principles

Acoounting for the equity and non-equity secunties purchased by
CTB has been changed from the lower of total cost or total market
value method to the lower of total consolidated cost or total
consolidated market value method from year 2002 and onwards. The
above change was approved by the SFC on November 13, 2000 amd
has no effect on the beginning halance of retained earnings in year
2002 but has resulted in an increase inonet imcome affer x for year
2002 by $390,236 thousand.

The onginal accounting principles applied by ICBC for equity

and non-equity securities purchased were the lower of wial cost or

Ei Explanations for Significant Accounts

total market value method and the lower of individual secunty cost or
market value method, respectively. The Securities Division of the
bank also adopted the lower of wtal cost or total market value
method for s propretary tading and underwriting businesses. The
reason for the change o the lower of total consolidated cost or total
consolidated market value method for all the bank's securities
investments in year 2002 is to improve evaluation of the overall
performance of its securities investments amd increase comparability
with the linancial statements of its peers. The above change was
approved by the SFC on January 2, 2002 and has resulted in a
decrease in allowance for valuation loss on securities investments [or
vear 2002 by $342,291 thowsand, which in turn has resulted in an

increase in net income by 5216,63<4 thousand.

1. Cash 2. Due from banks and Central Bank
Items Dec. 31, 2002 Items Dec. 31, 2002
Ceash $9.102.403 Due from banks $77.875.517
Cosh in banks 7977 454 Banks' overdrafts 17
Certfificates of fime deposit purchased 23,900,194 Call loans to banks 140,495 545
Post-dated checks for clearance 6,403,564 Due from Cenlral Bank 41,408,175
Tatal $47.383.619 Total §299.779,354

3. Short-term investments—net

The reserve fund deposited in Central Bank was $135, 107 830
thousand as of December 31, 20002,

Items Dec. 31, 2002
Marketable securities purchased $118.757.010
Securities held for operations 19,845,343
Bankers' acceptances purchased 81,659
Commercial paper purchased 20,259,283
Treasury bilk purchased 1,272,905
Cerfificates of fime deposit 76,626,900
Trust funds and trust receipts 4,354,522
Wegotfioble certificates of fime depaosit 840,729
Bonds purchased under resell agreements 2,269 808
Tortal 253,308.159
Less: allowance for valuafion loss an bils and securifies purchaosed [356.451)
Short-term investments - net $252,951,708

Please refer to Note V1 Tor details of the above assets pledged by the subsidiaries for loans,
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4. Receivables—net

Items Dec. 31, 2002
Motes receivable $386,104
Accounts receivable 13,497,972
Tax refund receivable 435,475
Accrued income 196,934
Interest receivable 7737843
Acceptances recetvable 8,849,290
Premiums raceivable 435,423
Indemnity refundable on reinsurance ceded 5,143,394
Depasits pald fo other securities lenders 1,329
Refinoncing guaraniees receivable 3664
Receivables from banks 199,084
rarginal receivables 3.0562.904
Forword exchange receivable - foreign cumencies 34,446,554
Foyakdes on forward exchange purchosed [30,533,.598)
Other receivables 3,112,480
Total 49,007,158
Less: allowances for doubiful accounts (1.071.110)
Receivobles - net 347,936,048
5. Loans and exchange bills negotiated and discounted —net
ltems Dec. 31, 2002
Exchange hills, import bills and export bills negaotiated $13,903,05%
Bils and nofes discounted 183,946
Short-term loans 512,566,329
Short-term secured loans B.8a3718
Overdrafts 48,239
Secured cverdrafts 389,582
Medium-ferm loans FLN5177
Medium-term secured loons 20,684,450
Long-term loans 37.487 4676
Long-term secured loans 149,786,927
Overdue receivables 10,981,367
Total 898.190.443
Less: allowance for doubiul accounts (8,015,152)
Loans and exchange bilk negafiated and dicounted - net $890.175.311
6. Long-term investments
Items Dec. 31, 2002
Long-term stock investments $37.350.185
Long-term invesiments in bonds 12037014
Long-term invesiments in trusts 237,287
Real estate investments 36,102
Taotal $49.722,590
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{ NLong-term stock investments

Dec. 31, 2002
Amount Percentage of Ownership

Equity method:
T8 Financial Management & Consulfing Co., Lid 524,549 100.00
International Futures Co., Lid. 333,333 100.00
Internationadl Securities Investment Cansuliing Co., Lid. 74,048 100,00
151 Securities (Global) Holdings Lid. 21,127 1040.00
Cathay Investment & Development Corporation (Bahamas| 941,507 100.00
Infernafional Commercial Bank of Cathay (Canada) 476,484 100.00
Barits Investrent Services Comp. F33.694 79.98
Chung Hsing Securifies Corp. 4,150,720 59,58
Yung Shing Indusiries Co, 444, 440 7522
Cathay Insurance Company, Inc. 17,173 2609
Euroc Il Venture Capital Corp. 218,726 25.00
Grand Cathay Veniure Capital Ca., Lid, 611,638 25.00
Infernafional Trade Building Corp. FEB.300 2300
Grand Cathy 1| Venture Capital Corp. 218,055 500
Central Securifies Invesiment Trust Co., Lid. 73879 25,00
Taiwan Finance Comporafion 1.002.381 2455
Cluariz Frequency Technology Lid. 6,354 73.02
United Investments Corp, 201,421 2260
Everstrong ron & Foundry & Mg, Comp. 19,753 nn
China Beal Estate Monagement Co., Lid. 100,235 70,00
Others 113,663 -

Subtotal 9732160

Cost method:
Lted companiss 677663
Lesws: allowance for declines in market value (22,507}
Listed companies - net 6,654,754
Unlisted companies 21,006,041
Les: allowance for declines in market value {2,770}
Unlisted companies - net 21,003,271

Subtotal 27658025
Tatal $37.390,185

The above investees accounted for under equity method and their resulting investment gains/losses are recorded based on their audited
financial statements. Additionally, for the above investees in which the Company holds more than 509 imterest, neither the total asscts and
operating revenue of cach individual investee exceed 10% of all the subsidianes’ respective accounts nor the tolal assets or operating revenue of all
these investees exceed 30% of all the subsidiaires' respective accounts. Therefore, these investees are ol incleded in the consolidated linancial

slatements
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(2) Long-term invesiments in bonds

{4 Real estate investments

ltems Dec. 31, 2002 ltems Dec. 31, 2002
European financial debentures $1,494,410 Costs
U5 government bonds 4,278,328 Land $28.737
Singapaore government bonds 409,304 Buildings and equipment 35,784
Domestic government bonds 2824267 Revaluation increment 344
Thaikand bBonds 25,006 Subtofal 64,845
Others 2.107.611 Accumulated depreciation [8.7483)
Total §12,03%.014 real estate nvestments-net §56,102
(3 Lionge e [ rvestineots in trasts U Real cm.m: imfi:llm:nts in buildings and equipment were revalved
on June 3, 1975,
llems Dec. 31, 2002 2 Please refer o Note [V-7, fixed assets, for details of the insurance
coverage for real estate investments
b L 167,728 FAs of December 31, 2002, rents receivable for the next two vears
[AHL P Ltd., principal protection fund) are as Follows:
ED & F Man Fund Corp.
[MIN-IF 360 Lid., principal protection fund) S S N_ﬂ“d — Amount
Total 4237286 January 2003 ~ December 2003 54,104
January 2004 ~ December 2004 2.603
Total 8,707
7. Fixed assets e
Dec. 31, 2002
— Cost Revaluation increment  Accumulated depreciation  Balance
Land $10.309.671 $2.483.0m b $12,792,782
Land impraverments 2849 418 [3.16%) 78
Buildings & Structures 11,813,144 47 588 (3,241,022} B.619.712
tachinery 1.13%.558 - (662,352) 477,208
Office and fransportafion equipment 2787 494 - [1.980,854) 806,640
Miscellaneous equipment 1.211.798 - [896,687) 315109
Leasehold improvements 335126 - {237,013} 8,113
Subtotal 27,509,644 2,531,077 (7,021,101} 23,109,640
Unfinished construction 387,718 - - 387718
Machinery on order §2.800 - - 92,800
Toxtal $28,080.162 $2.531.057 (7,021,101} $23.590.158
(1} As vequired by the government regulations, the land and other 8. Overdue receivables—net
fixed asscts of CTH were revalued on June 340, 1975, 1991 and
1995, As of December 31, 2002, the total revaluation increment ltems Dec. 31, 2002
for land and other fixed assets amounted 1o $2,531.097 thousand Overdue receivables $12.462,86%
and was booked under fixed assets. Frovision for Land revaluation Less: allowance for bad debts (2.116.108}
increment tax amounted to NT$1,317,349 thowsand as of Crverdue receivables - net $10.346,761

December 21, 2002 and was booked under long-term liabdlities.

(21 As of December 31, 2002, the insurance coverage Tor all fixed

mssets and real estate investments owned by the subsidianies was

$3.765.0662,

(3) Please refer 1o Note VI for details of the lixed assets pledged by

the subsidianes.

9. Short-term borrowings and commercial paper payable
I ———

ltems Dec. 31, 2002
Short-term secured borrowings F10,670,000
Commercial papsr payable 2,585,000
Less: discounts on commerciol paper payoble (6,293
Total $13.248, 708
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(1) Interest rates on short-term bormowings and commercial paper
pavable range from 1.33% 0 435%,
{2} Please refer to Mote V1 for details of the assets pledged by the

subsidianes for bormowings.

10. Due to Central Bank and banks

Items Dec. 31, 2002
Dwe to Central Bank §155,451 575
Due to banks 73,105,448
Overdratts on banks 1.594,428
Calllzans frem banks 45,198,535
Tartal 3275349984

11. Payables

ltems Dec. 31, 2002
Accounts payable $7.654.410
Celiections for others 263,636
Accrued expensss 2,695,731
Taxes payable 1,764,703
Interest payable 5893094
Acceplances 8,975,201
Commissions payable 42133
Dividends payable 5,704,804
Margin deposits on short sakes 269,332
Payables on proceeds from shorf sales 299,830
Indemnity poyakile 4.%81,835
é’lgﬂl}rrng: Tt;m:n ncds sold under repurchoss 15,591 574
Ligkility on stock warrant issuance 10,063
Payables to other insurers 514,595
Forward exchange payable - foreign cumencies 34,350,050
Receivables on forward exchange sold (30,692,731}
Oiher payables 7,256,314
Tatal $86.056,574

Please refer to Mote VI for details of the bonds sald under

reparrchase agreements and pledged by the subsidiaries For loans.

12. Deposits and remittances

Items Dec. 31, 2002
Checking account deposits $22.878,192
Demond deposits 147,316,509
Time deposifs 411,962,157
Tirre savings depaosifs 185851254
Demand savings deposits 89,340,045
Remitiances 6,093,458
Tarkal 1804,430 817

58 | Annual Repor 2002

13. Financial debentures—net

Items Dec. 31, 2002
Financial debentures $ad, 209,200
Leassidiscounts on financial debenfures =
Total $64,209.200

In April 1998, CTH gained approval from MOF (o issee 10-year
subordinated bonds in the United States for US$H300 million with the
principal to be repaid at matunity in 2008, The interest rate on the
bonds 15 LIBOR plus (065% per annum for the first five yvears and
LIBOR plus 300 per anmum for the last ive years, (Please refer o
Table 2 for details )

14. Borrowings from Central Bank and other banks

Items Dec. 31, 2002
Bemawings from Central Beank $124,595,549
Bomowings from other banks 30,998.241
Total $155,593.810
15. Corporate bonds payable
Items Dec. 31, 2002
Lnsecured comporate bonds $15,000,004

The Company issued its first unsecurcd corporate honds in
December 2002 with a todal amount of 513 billion and principal to
b repaid ot maturity, Please refer to Table 2 for details of the terms
on the corporate bonds,

16. Pensions
(1} Reconcilition of the pension provision with the carrying amount

of accrued pension lability as of December 31, 2002 is as follows:

Items Dec. 31, 2002

fenefit obligations:

Vested benefit cbigation [VEO)| $11.833.035)

Mon-vested benefit ohligation |2.897.000)

Accumulated benefit obligation [ABD) 14,.730,125)

Effects of future salary increments 11,674.290)

Frojected benefit obligation {PBO) |6,404,415)
Fesir vailue of assels 55879620
Funded stafus [824.795)
Unrecognized net transition obigation 343,187
Lnrecognized prior service costs 74.487
LUnrecognized gain (loss) on pension asets [1.014.468%)
Additional accrued pension liability [22.249)
e 16122
{1Scorded as ofher labif) _ Sndslbag
Prepaid penson costs recorded as ather asssd) $11.909




(2) Pension costs consist of the Tollowing:

17. Capital stock

The amount of the Company's issued shares as at its inception

ltems Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002 date, February 4, 2002, wias 529,156,078 thousand. A resolution was
Senvice cosfo 547 B8O passed in the year 2002 shareholders’ meeting o increase capital
Interest 310,890 through capitalization of capital surplus for 52,915,608 thousand
and 1o incorporate CHREE, BS, ICBC and CKI under the Company's
HIERElne NI SnRetR IO SRl ) umbrella through share exchange by issuing new shares of
amaortizafion and deferals (185.777) $78,416.716 thousand. As of December 31, 2002, the authonzed and
Decrease in gain/floss (93,782 issued shares of the Company amounted o 5120 billion and
Net pension costs $462.789 110,488,402 thousand, respectively, consisting of 11,048 840
thousand shares of common stocks with a par value of $10 per share.
(3) Actuanal assumptions: 18. GHF]it al SUFP“JS
| Dec. 31, 2002 e
tems .3 = =
e Capital surpius arising from exchange of shares  $49,924, 209
Discount rate 3.50%-4.00% : g i :

) Changes in capital surplus aiging from investees 1137
Increase in future level 200%-2.50% accounted for under equity method :
Expected rate of refurn on plan assets 2.50%-4.00% Total 349,925,341

19, Treasury stock
Reasons for Beqginning balance Increase Decrease Ending balance
Mo. of shares No. of shares No. of sheres Mo. of shares
stock buyback {in 000} Amount {in '000) Amount fin 000) Amount {in "000) Amount
Sﬂcre.s bought back to be . 3 . 132010 $ 234,701 = e 132,010 $ 234,701
fransferred to employees
Shargs of ICBC ariginaly
hedd by the Company and
freated as trecsury stocks = = 1,378,544 25,999,995 = = |.398,544 25,999,995
due fo exchange of 100%
shares
Shares of the Company
) I, == = - = | 1,283,552
heid by CTB &0,000 283,552 &0,000 263,55
Shores of the Company
! - - 4885 F2.2012 - = 4 B85 F2.202
e by CEI
Tetal 40,000 $1,283,552 1535437 528458508 i |- 1595437 529740480

(1) The Securities and Exchange Law sets a ceiling on the outstanding
shares allowed to be bought back st 10F% of the wial issued shares
of a company and the amount of shares bought back cannot
exceed the sum of the retained carnings, share issue premium and
realized capital surplus. The ceiling on the shares allowed 1o be

bouwght back by the Company as of December 31, 2002 was

1,104,884 thousand shares or $36, 163,440 thousand. As of

December 31, 2002, the Company’s ireasury stocks amounted o
132,000 thowsand shares or 52364701 thousand.

(2) On MNovember 7, 2002, the Company acquired a 28% equity stake
in ICBC, titaling 1,043,734 thousand shares. As ICBC joined the
Company on December 31, 2002 through exchange of 100%
shares, the 1,043,734 thousand shares acquired on November 7,
2002 were transformed into the Company’s treasury stocks which

consist of 139854 thousamd shares. The original acquisition cost

of these treasury stocks is $25,954 995 thousand with a par value
of 52491 per share and market value of $16.38 per share at the
emd of vear 2002

{3)

CTH onginally bought back 60 million shares in compliance with

Section 1, Article 28-2 of the Secunties and Exchange Law. As
CTB became a 1% owned subsidiary of the Company on
February <4, 2002 through exchange of shares, these treasury
stocks wene transformed into the Company's shares sccordingly.
Shares of the Company held by CTE are treated as treasury stocks
of the Company, which totaled &0 million shares as of December
31, 2002 with an acquisition cost of 51,283 552 thowsand and a
par value of $21.39 per share. The market value as of December
31, 2002 was $16.38 per share. Mo sale of these treasury stocks
occurred in year 2002,

{4 CKI onginally scquired 4885 thousand shares of CTB as short-
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&0

ferm invesiments. As CTE joined the Company as a 100% owned
stubsidiary through exchange of shares, these CTB's shares were
transformed into the Company's shares. In addition, UKl was
incorporated into the Company through exchange of shares on
December 31, 2002 Accordingly, shares of the Company held by
CRI are treated as treasury stocks of the Company, As of
December 31, 2002, the number of these treasury stocks was
4 B85 thousand with an acquisition cost of $92,212 thousand and a
par value of H15.88 per share, The market value as of December
A1, 2002 was 51638 per share and no sale of these treasury stocks

oceurred in year 2002

.
o

Treasury stocks of the Company are prohibited from being pledged

as collaterals and are not entitled (o dividends and voting rights,

20. Income tax

(1) The income tax comprises the followings:

Items Feb. 4 1o Dec. 31, 2002
Income tax payabbke - curent year 1408213
10% tax on unappropriated refoned eamings 800,377
Separafe tax expensss 126,213
Income tax expenses incured by
foreign branches 33752
Deferred ncome fax benefit (64,552)
Acdustmants forincome fox in previous vears 120,542
Total $1.932.525
{2) Imputation tax credit
Items Dec. 31, 2002
Account balance of impuiafion fax credit $8.547
tems Feb. 4, to Dec. 31, 2002
Estimated tax credit rate for 0.14%
individual stockholders .
(3} Unappropriated retained earnings:
ltems Dec. 31, 2002
1997 and before 1
1998 and onwards 6,239,231
Total §6.229.231

(<) Corporate income ax returns Nled by the subsidianies:

U As of December 31, 2002, CTR'S inconwe tax returns were assessed
by the Mational Tax Administration {NTA) up to the six months
ended December 31, 1999, However, s tax refumd receivable for
the six months ended December 31, 1999 was £11,879 thousand
short, compared to the income tax return Nled by CTB, as NTA

made adjustiments for the withholding tax levied on the accrued
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coupon interest income generated from bonds sold under
repurchase agreements. CTB has Nled an appeal and has made
provision for income tax expenses. The case was ot yet finalized

as of December 31, 2002

ko

BIS's income tax returns were assessed by NTA up to December
31, 1999 An additional mcome tax of $29. 751 thousand was levied
by NTA Tor the year 1999 as NTA revised the withholding tax
levied on the accreed coupon interest income from bonds, coupled
with the discrepancy in the recognition of related expenses incurred
om securities exchange. BIS did not agree with the ruling amd has
filed an appeal which was still under review as of December 31,
2002, BIS has made necessary provision [or Income (ax expenses

CHRF's income tax returns were assessed by the NTA up o
December 31, 1999, However, the withholding tax levied on the
acerued coupon interest income generated from government bonds
for the vears from 194 0o 1999, totaling $2,1100301 thousand, 15

i

neither allowed to be used as a tax credit nor refundable. CHEF did
nol agree with the ruling and has [led a petition for the year 1998
and 1999 tax retums. CHEF has also filed an appeal Tor the tax
returns Trom 1994 w0 1997 and has made a deposit of $460,471
thousamd with NTA of Taipei. To minimize uncertainty, CHBEF set
aside $2,535,000 thousand a5 a provision for income tax expense
o December 31, 2000, As of December 31, 2002, the provision
was assessed (o be adequate to cover any polential increase in

income tax expenses in the fwture

r

BS's income tax retums have been assessed by the NTA up o

December 31, 1998,

in

[CBC's income tax returns have been assessed by the NTA up to
December 31, 1997, An sdditional tax of $175570 thousand was
levied by NTA Tor vear 1997 as NTA eliminated the income tax
effects of $153,411 thousand arising from other Iosses of $613,6:444
thousand and the 521,937 thousand of withhelding tax levied on
acerued coupon imterest income Trom bonds. In addition, the NTA
of Taipei eliminated $23.643 thousand and 525,517 thousand of
withholding tax levied on accrued coupon interest income from
government bonds for the vear 1994 and 1995 tax returns,
respectively, ICBC did not agree with the above ruling and has [liled
an appeal. Moreover, the Company incurred a withholding tax,
totaling $192 888 thousand, on sccrued coupon interest imoome
from government bonds for the years 1996, 1998, 1999 2000 and
2001, The total amount of the above-mentioned ax expenses on
accrued coupon interest income from government bonds for the
vears 1994 o 2000 was recorded in the ICBC"s book in yvear 2001,
The withhelding tax of 517,49 thousand on accrued coupon
interest income from honds for the six months ended June 30, 2002
has also been incorporated into the income ax expense Tor the
same period

& CKI% income tax retums have been assessed by the NTA up to

December 31, 2000, except Tor the years 1998 and 19549,



21. Basic earnings per share

(In thousand shares) Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002
Beginning balance of outstanding shares 2,515,608
Add: capitalization of capital surplus 71,541
Add: Bsvance of 7.841,472 thousand new shares due to exchange of shares 2.8463.9%1
Less: shares bought back from May 21 to December 31, 2002 (55.511)
Less: shares of the Company held by subsidianss and freated os freasury stacks (44.885)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 2,950,764

(In NTS'000) Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002
Met income before fax 34,798,557
Consolidated net income §4,298.075
Basic earnings per share [in NTH)
Metincome before fox $1.04
Consolidated net ncome $1.04
Pro formea basic earnings per share based on the assumption that shor-term investments in money market instraments are accounted for under

Tower of total consolidated cost or market value method:

({In thousand shares) Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002
Beginning balonce of outstanding shares 2.915.608
Add: capitalzation of capital surplus 71,581
Add: Bsuance of 7,841,872 thousond new shares due to exchangs of shares 843,991
Less: shares bought back from May 21 to December 31, 2002 (53.311)
Less: shares of the Company held by subsidiaries and freated as freasury stocks |44.885)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares 5,950,764

{In NTS'000) Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002
Met income before fox §5.756.251
Consolidated net incomes §5.755.784
Bosic earnings per share (in NT§)
Met income before fax §0.97
Consolidated net income $0.57

Pro forma eamings per share hased on the assumption that shares of the Company held by the subsidiaries are not treated as ressury stocks:

(In NTS'000) Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002
Beginning bolonce of outstanding shares 3,915,608
Add: capitalization of copital surplus 71,581
Add: Bsuance of 7,841,872 thousand new shares due to exchanges of shores 2863.991
Les: shares bought back from May 21 to December 31, 2002 (53.311)
Weighted average number of outstanding shares &.015,64%
{In NTS'000) Feb. 4 to Dec. 31, 2002
Met ncome hefore fox §4,286,350
Consolidated net incame 34,285,873
Bosic earnings per share (in NT§)
Met income before fox §1.08
Consolidated net incomes §1.05

Fimancil Rt

6l



M Related Party Transactions
Chiao Tung Bank (CTB)

1. Names of the related parties and their relationship with CTB

Related parties Relationship with CTB
China Real Estate Management Co., Lid., etc. Investee companies of CTE accounted for under equity method
Directors, supervisorns and managens of fhe Company CTB's directors, supervisors, managers, Chairman of the Board, General Manager
and ther spouses and relofives
Taiping Insurance Co., Ltd., etc. CTB is the director and supervisor of Taiping.
Ministry of Finance, etc. Directors, supenisors and shareholders of CTE's parent comapny

2. Major transactions with related parties

{1y Credits granted to and deposits from related parties

Year ltem Related parties EMdingBalanceas % oftheaccount's  Interestincome % of the acCount's |oroct rare

of Dec. 31, 2002 ending balance {expense} fotal amount

a0z Deposite  Directors, supervisors F182.004 0.06% $5.4%%) 0.05% 0%~13%
and managers of the
Company
China Real 43,141 0.02% [179) - 0%~1.925%
Estate Monagement
Co., Lid., etc.
Taiping Insurance 232411 0.83% 1328,440) 2.78% %-22%
Co., Lid., efc.
Ministry of Finonce, etc, 73,339,478 25.67% |58.480) 0.50% 0%-2.15%

Loans Directors, supervon 34,304 0.01% 1 - 22%-155%

and managers of the
Company
Taiping Insurance 5,758,251 1.41% 24,520 0.03%  L12%-4.345%
Co., Lid., efc.
Ministry of Finance, etc. 847,820 0N% 419 - 207%-3%

. — s 2) Chrantees for related parties
As the credits granted to and deposits from individual related i Lol

parties are less than 10% of the respective account balances of CTH,

_ _ _ Related parties Dec. 31, 2002
only todal amounts {not individoal amounts) are disclosed. China Real Esota Monngamant o, Lid., alc. 07
Taiping hsurance Co., Lid,, elc. 572,707
{3) Leases
Year Lessor Relationship Lease Period Usage  Deposits  Rental Address
2002 International Trade  Investee accounted Jan, 1,2001 World Trade $3.587 $13.681 333, Keelung Rd.
Building Comp. for under equity -Dec. 31,2002 Center Branch Sec, 1, Taipei
method
{4} Acceptances receivable
Dec. 31, 2002
Related party .
Amount Yo
Taiping Insurance Co., Lid., efc. 512,154 0.37%
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(5) Long-term stock myestments

Year Seller Investee MNo. of shares  Price per share  Total amount paid

2002 Ministry of Finance  Financial Information Service Co., Lid. 4,550 thousond 10 $45,500
(6 Miscellaneous revenues

2002
Related party
Amount %

CTB Financial Management & Consulting Co.. Lid. 51,005 16%
Barits International Securities Co., Ltd. (BIS)
1. Names of the related parties and their relationship with BIS

Related parties Relationship with BIS

Fuhwa Bank Former director of BIS [discharged in February 2002)

Internaficnal Securities Investment Consulting Cao., Lid. {I51C) Subsidiary of BIS

Infernafional Futures Co., Lid. (IF) Subsiciary of BIS

Cenfral securities Investment Trust Co., Lid. (C3T)

2. Major transactions with related parties

Investes company accounted for under equity method

(1) Bank deposits, short-term time deposits pledged, deposits for operations and financial revenue

Related party Transactions
Fulwa Bank Bank deposits
Deposits for operations

Ending balkance
Financial revenie

(2) Short-term bomowings and inlerest expense

2002
Amount Yo
§7.488 7
340,000 &1
$367,488
$13.03 12

2002
Related
L Highest balance  Ending balance Interest rate  Interest expense Ending balance of interest payable
Futwea Bank $500.000 $500.000 210%-2.95% $5,680 5547
(3) Bonds sold under repurchase agreements
Rotated 2002
a
BRI Highest balance  Ending balance Interest rate  Interest expense Ending balance of interest payable
CEm $150,000 §- | 65%-4 B0% 4419 ¥
15 48,177 - 1.480%-2.30% e
IF 40,111 - 1.70%-2.30% 130
Tedal 5 }

{4) Commission income

BIS has been providing assistance for futures transactions since
20002, The commissien income generated from 1F Tor the year
2002 was $35,175 thousand, As of December 31, 2002,
commssion receivable amounted o $2, 148 thousamd and was

booked under other curment asset,

(5) Consulting services contracts

BIS signed a consulting services contract with ISIC in the secomd
hall” of 2000, B1S is required o pay the consulting fees based on
the actual services received. The consulting fees paid for the vear
2002 were 56,615 thousand, There was no accrued consulting

expense as of December 31, 2002,
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(6} Property exchange

BRI5 sold land, buildings, office and transporation equipment to TF and IS1C for $68,523 thousand and $23 thousand, respectively, in 2002, The
selling prices were determined based on the book value of the respective equipment on the transaction date and thus, there were mo gaims or losses
om the disposals. As of December 31, 2002, all proceeds from the disposal wene received.
{7y Leases

UProperties leased out

Lessees Rental properties Rental income
2002

IF Office building §233

15IC Office building 739

Fuhwa Bank Office building 4,758

All rentals are paid quarterly excepd for Fuhwa Bank who pays monthly, The rentals charged are based on those charged for surrounding
huildings and are negoiable
ZLeasehold propenies

Rental expense Deposits paid
Lessor = = Properties Period Method of
2002 Dec. 31, 2002 payment
Fuhwa Bank 400 $200 Eaohsiung Branch Sept. 1, 1998 ~ June 30, 2002 Monithby

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corp. (CHEF)

{1y Names of the related parties and their relationship with CHBF

Related parties Relationship with CHEF
[A) After joining Mega on August 22, 2002
United Microelectonics Corp, [UMC) Director and supervisar of CHEFSs parent company
Directorate General of Postal Remittances ond Sovings Bank (Fost Office|  Director of CHBF's parent company
Yu-Chiinvestrment Co., Lid. Director of CHEF's parent company
Char-Lo investment Co., Lid. Director of CHEF's parent company
Hong Tai Electic Industrial Co., Lid. {Hong Tai Director of CHEF's parent company (resigned in November 2002]
Central Investrment Co., Lid, [CI) Director of CHBF's parent company (resigned in Ccfober 2002)
Chung Hsing Securities Corp. {CHS) Subsidiary of CHBF
Chung Hiing Securities Investment Service Corp. |[THEIS) Investes of CHBF's subsidiary accounted for under equity method
Chung Hsing Asset Management Co., Lid. Investes of CHBF's subsidiary accounted for under equity method
Oihers Directors, supervisors, prasident, vice president, asociate vice

presidents and department heads of CHEF plus spouses of fhe
Company's directors, supervisors and president, and relafives of
the Company's chairman and president

(B} Before joining Mega on August 22, 2002

Central Investment Ca., Lid. [C] Director and supervisar of CHEF

Bonk of Tawan |BOT| Director and supervisar of CHEF

Lond Bank of Taiwan [Land Bank| Director of CHEF

shanghai Commercial and Savings Bank [3C38| Director of CHEF

Hualon Microelectronics Corp. (HMC) Director of CHEF

Hua Man Commercial Bank [HHCB) Supervisor of CHEF

Tarbwean Business Bank [TBE) Supernvisor of CHEF

Taiwan Tea Corp. (TTC) Supervisor of CHEF

Chung Hsing Securifies Corp. (CHS| Subsidiary of CHBEF

Others Directors, supervisors, president, vice president, associate vice

presidents and department heads of CHEF plus spouses of CHEFs
directans, supenvisors and president, and relatives of CHEF
charman and president
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(2) Major transaction with related parties

(AY Call loans to kanks

2002
Highest balance Ending balance Interest rate Interest expense
SCHB $300.000 2 2.275% $19
(B) Owverdrafts on banks and call loans from banks
2002
Highest balance Ending balance Interest rate(3s) Interest expense
Owerdrafts on banks
BOT 52,647,000 F1,138,000 1.500-6.975 547,651
SCSB 18,103 7.170 1
Call loans from banks
Land Bank 3,000,000 500,000 1.550-2.100 19.096
BOT 2,240,000 30,000 1.625-2.325 3.574
TBE 5,100,000 - 1.600-2.350 12,587
Past Office 3,200,000 - 1.675-2.450 2,556
HNCB 1,500,000 1.550-2.000 1,848
SC5B 1,350,000 - 1.925-1.975 1.889
$1.488,000 149,242
(073 Bills, secunties and bopds sold (B} Collaterals
2002 Collaterals Dec. 31, 2002
BoT $432,974,132 BOIT Certiicates of fime deposit, ust
Land Bank 233192.3%6 receiph, negotioble cerlificates of $4.282747
Post Office 136,975,685 time deposit, government bonds i
Subsicliary of LMC 45,324,433 and corporate bonds
HNCE 44,974,448 TERB Certificates of fime depaosit 200,000
SCSB 21,192,482 SCSHE Cerfificates of fime deposit 100,000
TBE 16,058,317 First
ol 19,148,302 I:E?é:ur:zmerc:iul Certificates of time deposit -
CHS 9.185.201 Total $4,502,747
Hang Tai 1,923,288
Chung Hsing Asset Management Co., Lid. 146,678 I eoascswmts
Charn-Lo Investment Ce., Lid. 34,858 2002
Yu-Chiinvestment Co., Lid. 25417 Amount g
Others S63.654 CHSIS $1.200 1287
Total $954,743,511
{03y Bental incomse
Terms and conditions on the above transactions are identical o
those with non-related parties. 2002
(D) Guarantees on commercial papers Amount Yo
CHS 20,708 0.7

nc
Cl
HMC

Tatal

2002
$2.516,000
2,300,000
50,000

34,806,000

CHBF leased pant of its office building to CHS, The rental is

hased on those charged for surrounding office buildings and 15 paid
monthly. The rental period starts in June 2000 and ends in May 2003,

The total rental received amounted to
[ecember 31, 2002,

$3,177 thousand as of
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Barits Securities Co., Lid. (BS)
1. Names of the related parties and their relationship with BS

RAelated parties Relationship with BS
Barits Investment Services Corp. [BISC| 79.98% owned subsidiary of B3
Barits Securities Investreant Trust Co., Lid. (B3] BS wias BST's director prior fo August 22, 2002,
Pou Chen Corp. (FCC) Major shareholder of 85 prior fo August 22, 2002

2. Major transactions with related parties

(1) Agency imcome (4 Service cosls

2002 2002
Amount k3 Amount %G
BAIT $4.251 1.52 BISC 13,694 16.18

(2) Hental income e .
(3 MWotes amd accounts receivable

2002
Amount %% Dec. 31, 2002
BISC $1.578 35.40 Amount u
BSIT $303 0.04
Rental charged o the related party 15 based on those charsed
the surrounding area and is paid monthly. () Other payables
(3 Property exchange
T Purchase of Nxed assets i el
m
BS purchased transportation equipment from PCC in 2002, B5C Ll ;:2
totaling $2,450 thousand, The price was hased on that prevailing :
ML (7) Share transactions
2 Sale of fixed assets BS sold part of its stake in BSIT of 4,300 thousand shares 1o
2002 POC i June 2002 for 517 per share (based on the net worth per
Itemn Book value  Selling price  Gain on sale share). Gain on the sale was 525 649 thousand.

BISC  Other fired gssets 33 53 §-

International Commercial Bank of China (ICBC)
1. Transactions with related parties

Major transactions with ICBC's investees accounted Tor by equity method, 100% owned subsidiaries of 1CBC, companies with the same
directors, supervisors, managers and chairman with the Company, and companies receiving more than 13 of donations from the Company are
summanzed below:

(A D 1o and From banks

2002
— Endingbalance  Highestbalance Interestrate(%) Interest income{expense)

Due from bonks

Infernafional Commercial Bank of Cathay (Canada) $568.354 $940,594 0.25-3.63 11,527

ICBC |Eurcpe] M.V, . 104,071 0.004-3.45 1.402

Taiwan Finance Corp. 435,000 500,000 1.25 547
Due fo banks

Post Office 38978877 59,401,140 23 (1.463.6%9)

Internaficnal Commercial Bank of Cathay (Canada) 80,081 141,715 1.5-1.8125 (1.262)

ICBC [Europe) MW, - 7AW (1004-3.45 (5.738)

Cathay Investment & Development Corp. [Bahamas) 220,095 713,342 1.25-3.20 (8.054)

Taiwan Finance Corp. 582 40,157 -
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(B) Credis granted and deposits

Dec. 31, 2002 %
Loans and exchange bilk 84,570,450 :
negofioted and dicounted
Guaranfees issued a.0%7 =
Deposifs 4 409,366 1

Interest rates on the credits granted and deposits are the sanwe as
those on the non-related parties except for those on the deposits from
the managers, which are based on the stall rtes on savings deposits.
() Others
11 Rills and secunities purchased from Taiwan Finance Corp. (investce

accounted for under equity method) and transactions on bills and
bonds with repurchase and resell agreements dunng the vear 2002
were $3018.872 thowsand and $2.728,623 thousand, respectively,
DICHC has been outsourcing s credit cards operations o Win Card
Co, Lid, (subsidiary of ICBC) since 2000, The operational costs
incurred for the vear 2002 were 5218683 thousand and were

Chung Kuo Insuance Co., Ltd. (CKI)

recorded as general expenses. [CBC paid part of the costs on Win
Card's behall, which resulted in a receivable from Win Card of
$3,015 thowsand as of December 31, 2002 Addionally, 1CBC has
a lease agreement with Win Cand, which is effective from January
2000 o January 2008, The rent is paid quarterly with a monthly
rent of 307 thousand, The rental income for the vear 2002 wias
$i, OB thousand.

1

ICBC leases an operation venee from Yung Shing Industries Co,
{subsidiary of ICBC) with the lease agreement effective from
December 1994 10 November 2004, Rent 15 paid annually with a
monthly rent of % thousand, The rental expense incurred for the
year J02 was 55,320 thousand. In addition, Yung Shing rented an
office from [CBC with the rental period from October 2000 10
Sepltember 2003 Rent 15 paid quarterly with a monthly rent of
$126 thousand. The rental imcome received by [CBC for the vear
2002 was 51,438 thousand,

Interest rates on the above-mentioned transactions are based on

those prevarling in the market

1. Names of the related parties and their relationship with CKI

Related party

Relationship with CKI

Hoan Insurance Agency Co., Lid.

The director of CEl & ako the director of the company.

2. Major transactions with the related party

The insurance coverage provided by CKI for Hoan Insurance
Agency Co, Lid's premivms received wnder custody was 5263917

thousand in 2002, The resulting commission expense was $03,177

thousand, As of December 31, 2002, premiums receivable and
commissions payable arising from the above transaction were

H11,194 thousand and $4,721 thousand, respectively.

m Pledged Assels
Asset Dec. 31, 2002
Book value

Bils purchased $23.566 467
Other current assets 3082194
Long-term investments &7.084.359
Fixed assets 1,091,584
Other assets 26,187
Total $94.950.793
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B Commitments and Contingencies

Year Amount
Chiao Tung Bank (CTB) 2003 $36.352
(1} CTBE's commitments and contingencics as of December 31, 2002 2004 33,480
were as follows: 2005 12,725
2004 2777
Dec. 31, 2002 2007 and onwards 2787
Farward securifies purchased $7.929.743 Tatal 388,103
Forward securifies sold 1.783.821
Trust asseds 4,557,205 (3 As resodved by BIS's Board of Directors on October 14, 2002,
Clients' securities under custody 308,070,539 BI5 acquined all the operations and properties of Chung Hsing
Guarantee effects 0,244 Securities Corp. (CHS), a subsidiary of the Company. The
Trvelers' checks consignad-in 288,382 acquisition cost as resolved by the Board on October 31, 2002
R 791,093 wias 54,222 296 thousand and was (o be paid in four
Calactions for client 213.047 797 installments which are detaled as follows:
olections for clients 047,
R R o 12,528,677 U Fiest installment: $2,800,000 thousand o be paid within three
Government bonds 132,121,000 busingss davs commencing rom the following day alter the
T ; effective acquisition date.
Cerfified notes paid 108,884,162 2 8econd installment: $522,296 thousand o be paid by Julv 31,
Guarantess ssued 48,663,705 LI
Lefters of credit 12,475,854 2 Third installment: $450,000 thowsand o be paid by June 30,
Total $851,435,226 Sl
4 Fourth installment: 430,000 thousand (o be paid by June 30,
{23 CTE's tax refund receivable for the six months ended December 2005

31, 1999 s 511879 thowsand short, compared (o the income

: 5 4 [mterest is charged on the last three installments commencing
return filed by COTH, as NTA made adjustments for the s T

withholding tax levied on the accrued coupon imterest income from the following day after the effective acquisition date. The

- interest rate is based on the Post Office’s (oating board rate f
from bonds sold under repurchase agreements. CTE has filed an R s v e sl e e ]

= : -1 one-year time deposits in respective vear. Accroed interest on the
appeal and has made provision for income tax expenses. The case e P oy .

was ot yet finalized a8 of December 31, 2002 unpaid installments must be paid five business days before the end

of the respective year.

Barits International Securities Co., Lid. (BIS)

BIS signed the acquisition agreement with CHS on November 1,

{1y BIS signed several proxy delivery agreements with a number of 2002 and obtained the approval from SFC, Ministry of Finance
secunties companies.  In accordance with these agreements, these (Tai-Tsai-Fen (2} Mo 0910165658) on December 13, 2002, The
secunties companics agree 1o be BISS first and second proxies. 1F effective acquisition date was sel on January 30, 2003,

BIS is unable to fulfill its obligations o the Taiwan Stock

Chung Hsing Bills Finance Corp. (CHBF)

Exchange, the proxies must act wpon the said obligations, BIS has

reciprocated by agreeing to act as the first or scoond proxy for the

Year Dec. 31, 2002
Bills and bonds sold under repurchose agreements  $151,175.841

ahow e secuniies Compunies.

{2) BIS signed several lease agreements for its head office and

branch offices. As of December 31, 2002, the annual mimimum Guarantees for commercial papess 161,023,600
rents payahble m the Tollowing years for these non-cancelable Bils and bonds purchased under resell agreements 11.437.727
Total $363.641,185

operating leases were as follows:
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Barits Securities Co., Lid (BS)

(1) Two of BS's former brokers conducted a fraudulent transaction in
Movember 19904 and embeszled 556,823 thousand from Lo-kang
Credit Cooperative {LIKCC) acoordingly by taking sdvantage of
LECC's operational flaws when it was dealing with the
seftlement of the above transaction. LKCC claimed that they had
Lo pay the 556 823 thousand in advance for BS and thus,
cancelled BS's $60 million time deposit with LKOC withowt BS's
consent and deducted 556,823 thousand from the cancelled
deposit. BS filed a lawsoit against LECC Tor return of the
$36,823 thousnd and applied for a retention of the properties of
the said securities brokers' joint guarantors
The 556,823 thousand was recorded by BS under "other assets -
other receivables". For the execution of the property retention,
BS paid 519,000 thousand time deposit to the court as a collateral
in 1998, which was replaced by the government bonds with a
cost of $21, 167 thousand and a face value of $19.000 thousand in
Jume 1999, The collateral was recorded as "other assets
guarantes deposils paid”.

BS won the lawsuit in the second trial on February 24, 1997 and
LEK was ohliged to return the $36,823 thousand, together with
the associated interest and the legal costs incumed by BS Tor the
first and second tnals. LEOC made an appeal which was stll

under review as of December 31, 2002,
(2) Operating leases

ULeasehold properties: BS's head olTice in Taipei and its
hranches.

Tlease period: From February 16, 19498 w0 December 135, 207,
DRestricted clauses: Mone.

AAnnual rents payable for the next five vears are summarized as

follows:

Year Amount
2003 $11.241

2004 &744
2005 8215
2004 8,267
2007 4075
Total 140,542

International Commercial Bank of China (ICBC)

(13 Bills and bonds purchased under resell agreements were totaled at
34,323 505 thousand as of December 31, 2002, ICHC was
required to resell the bills and bonds for $4,328, 044 thousand by
January 29, 2003, In addition, the bonds sold under repurchase
agreements were todaled at 56,850,958 thousand as of December
31, 2002, ICBC was required o repurchase the bonds or
$40,856 488 thousand by January 24, 2003,

(2) ICBC signed several lease agreements for a number of its branch
offices. Rents are based on the actual floor area of the rental
property and are paid monthly, quarterly or semi-annoally
according o the respective lease agreements. All the lease
agreements will expire by the end of vear 2021 and are
renewable, Deposits paid for these lease agreements amounted 1o
$134.735 thousand as of December 31, 2002 and were recorded
as olber assets, The annual rents payable for the next five vears

are a5 follows:

Year Amount
003 §170.989
2004 100,369
2005 77.583
004 0484
2007 28.957

The total amount of the rents payable for the period from vear
2008 10 2021 15 estimated o be $62 303 thousand with a present
value of $54,121 thousand, discounted by 14% per annum {the

Post CHTice's interest rate on one-vear Lime de posit).

(3) Contracts signed for renovation of branch offices and purchase of
cqguipment were totaled at 5205 375 thousand. The accroed
expenses on these contracts as of December 31, 2002 were
$96,235 thousand,

() ICBC undeniook (o acquire unpaid shares of 548,750 thousand

invested by enterprises,

Chung Kuo Insuarnace Co., Ltd. (CKI)

(1) As of December 31, 2002, the unutilized portion of the letiers of
credit issued by CKI for reinsurance was 57 348 thowsand.

(2) For construction of its office building and the other construction
provect, CRI signed contracts with the construction companies for
a total amount of $446,918 thousand. As of December 31, 2002,
the sccrued construction expense was $81,257 thousand,

{3} Tatwan Power Company (TPC) purchased a casualty insurance
policy from CKI [or its constroction project of a power plant. In
February 2002, TPC hNled a lawsuit against CKI due to the
disagreement with CKI's calculation of the adjustments in
premium reflund. The total amount for the imsurance policy is
$148,757 thousand with a retained amount of 575 thousand, CKI
will be able to claim the premium refunded to TPC from the
reinsurance company hased on the amount of the premivm refund
ruled by the cowrt. The case has undersone the preliminary trial
bt @ verdict has not been reached.

{4) CKI amd the other four general insurers jointly issued a (e
insurance policy to Fu 1 Industrial Co., Lid. Because of the
damages caused by the catastrophic earthgquake on September 21,
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19499, Fu | made a claim from the insurers. However, the amount
claimed by Fu I was significam]y larger than that assessed by the
insurers, which led 1o a dispute between the two sides. According
(o the ruling by the Arbitration Association of BLOUC, (AAROC),
CKI and the other general insurers were required to pay Fu |
$1,154,200 thousand and the associated interest of 3% per annum
incurred from Seplember 2000 1o the payment date. CKT was
required o pay an amount of $634810 thousand based on CKI's
proporticnate share of the insurance policy. The estimated
amount of compensation that should be recorded in CKI's book
would be $700 million should CKI take into account of the
compensation amount ruled by AARCC, the associated interest
and expenses incurred. CKI has made full provision for the $700
million compensation and a retained claim of $10.710 thousand

for reinsurance.

i Major Disaster Losses

In July and September 2002, equipment, buldings and leasehold
improvements of BIS's head office, Kaohsiung Branch, and San
Chung Branch were destroved by the [Mood caused by tropical
evelones, The ook values of the damaged fixed assets amnd leaschold
properties were $235,345 thowsand and 51,274 thousand, respectively.
With the compensation of $7,472 thousand claimed from the
insurance company, the loss recognized by BIS was $19,147

thowsand and was reconded as non-operating expensce.

b Major Subsequent Events

1. BI5s merger with BS was resolved by the Company's Board of
Dhirectors with the effective merger date being set on January 31,
2003, B s the surviving entity after the merger,

2 O January 22, 2008, [CBC sold operating facilities for securities
brokerage to BIS for $9.800 thousand. Gain on the sale was
estimated 10 be 5223 thousand.

Others

I. Disclosure of derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes: Mone.
2. Disclosures of denvative Iinancial mstruments Tor non-trading

Purpses:

Annual Repon 20402

{1} Contract amounts:

Financial Dec. 31, 2002 Contract
instrument S amount (Nominal amount)
Inferest rate swap 1k §5.400,000
(2p Credit risk:
Financial instrument  Currency Dec. 31, 2002
Inferest rate swap MTE $14.923

The above credit risk amount is based on the contracts with
poesitive fair value at the balance sheet date and represents the
possible loss that will be incurred by the Company in the event that
the counter-parties breach the contracts. The counter-parties of the
Company are all financial institutions with good credit ratings and

thus, credit risk 15 considered to be remaote.
(3 Market nsk:

Market risk relers to the risk arising from the Muctuations in
interest rates.

[nterest e swaps are used o hedge Nuctuations m mlerest mies,
As gains or losses anising from the Muctuations in interest rates are
mostly offset by the gains or losses on the hedge instruments, market
risk 15 considered 1o be remaote.
(4) The purpose and strategy of holding derivative financial

Instroments:

The abowve lnancial denvative contracts are entered nto for risk
hedging purposes. By entering inlo reverse transactions, the risk
exposure 15 minmized.

(5) Fair value:

Financial instrument Currency Dec. 31, 2002
Interest rate swap MT§ $8.859

(6) Net trading gains or losses and their disclosure in the income

slatcment:

January 1, to December 31, 2002

MNettrading  Income statement
Currency gains (losses) disclosure
Inferast rate Inferest income
MTE yaa
SWap [expensal




3. Fair Value of non-derivative financial instruments:

Dec. 31, 2002
Carrying Value Fair Value
Assels
Cash 47,383,819 47,383,819
Due from banks and Cenfral Bank 299,779,354 299,779,354
Bills purchosed - net 252,951,708 252,951,708
Receivables - net 47,934,048 47,934,048
Loans and exchange bills negotioted ond discounted - net 80,175,311 a%0.175.30
Overdue receivables - net 10,348,761 10,344,781
Long-ferm investrments 49,722,590 49,722,590
Linkilities
Short-ferm borrowings and commercial paper payable 13,248,708 13.245.708
Due to Cenfral Bank and other banks 275,349 986 275,349,984
Payables 84,056,574 85,056,574
Deposits and remithances Bé4 437 417 864,439,617
Financial debentures - net £4,209,200 64,209,200
Barawings fram Cenfral Bank and ofher banks 156,593,810 155,593,810
Corporate bonds payable 15,000,000 15,004,000
The assumptions and methodologies adopted by the Company to 4. Disclosure required by the Clause No.11 of the

cstimate the Tair values of the financial instruments are summerzed Standard for Financial Reporting by the
as Tollows: ) ) ) ) .

Financial Holding Companies:
(1 Fair values of the short-term linancial instruments are estimated L ) ) )
based on their carrying valees on the balance sheet. As matunty e ot b it st .

Dec. 31, 1

of these instruments is sho in nature and their disposal prices The Group's capital - ltems deducted from capital
approsimate o the carrying values, estimation of the Fair values ; : o L9615
The Group's statutory capital requirement
based on the carrying values is deemed reasonable. This method

is applied 1o cash, due from banks, due from Central Bank, (2} The amounts and amortization of the revenues, costs, expenses,

£ . . zains and losses arising (rom the transactions between the
receivables, short-term borrowings, commercial paper payable, L b

due to Central Bank, due to other banks, payables, deposits and Company and its subsidianes, point promaotion of businesses, and

il sharing of information, operating equipment or venues:

(2) Fair values of the short-term and long-term investments are based e L e e oL e

. .0 : . above-mentioned revenues, costs, expenses, 2ains and losses
on the quoted market prices, il available, If the quoted market pe =

prices are not available, fair values are estimated using financial ettt Ll o

information or other information.

Names of the subsidiaries Dec. 31, 2002
Barits International Securities Co., Lid, 204.08%

(3} Fair valees of the exchange bills negotiated and discounted,
loans, overdue receivables and deposits are all interest bearing
financial assets and liabilities, most of which are based on Barits Securities Co., Lid. 286.40%

flosting interest rates. As a result, their book values approximate

T S (3) Limits on the statutory Ninancial mtios of the Company’s [uiones

subsidiaries: Mot applicable,
(4) As corporate bonds payable, borrowings from Central Bank and

other banks and financial debentures are financial liabilities with

floating interest rates, their book values equal to the fair values.
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company and its affiliated COrT'IDaﬂiESZ

Mot li le,
{1y Pursuamt o the rules stipulated in the Letter of (88) Tai-Tsai-Zen ot applicable

(6 No01404 issued by SFC, MOFE, publicly lhisted companies are
required to comply with Paragraph No.36 of the Financial
Accounting Standard No.7, Consolidated Financial Statements,
when they are preparing the notes (o the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, they are required to disclose the
information on the affiliated companies' accounts eliminated and
the eliminated gains | losses on the transactions between
affiliated companies.

{2} Separate disclosures are required where the affiliated companies’
total assets and operating revenues hoth exceed 10% of the

controdling company's respective accounts,
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m Financial Statements (Parent Company)

DIWAN, ERNST & YOUNG

English Tronskation of o Beport Criginally ssued in Chinese

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Mega Financial Holding Company

We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of Mega Financial Holding Company (the
Company; formerly CTB Financial Heolding Co., Ltd.} as of December 31, 2002, and the related
statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the financial period from
February 4 (inception date] to December 31, 2002, These financial statements are the responsibility of
the Company's management, Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit,

We conducted our audit in accordance with "Regulations for Auditing and Certification of
Financial Statements in the Banking Industry by Certified Public Accountants” and auditing standards
generally accepted in the Republic of Ching on Taiwan, Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on o test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit alse includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable asis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mega Financial Holding Company as of December 31, 2002, and the results of ifs
operations and its cash flows for the financial period from February 4 to December 31, 2002 in
conformity with the guidelines for preparation of financial repeorts by financial holding companies and
securities issuers and accounting principles generally accepted in the Republic of Ching on Taiwan,

We have alse audited the consclidated financial staternents of Mego Financial Holding Company
and an ungualified opinion was expressed for the financial period from February 4 to December 31,

2002,
Dhsany Gomat 2
February 14, 2003

Taipei, Taiwan
Republic of China

Motice to Readers
The accompanying financial stalemeants are infended only fo present The financial position and results of operatiors and cash flows in
accordance with accounfing principles and practices generally accepied in the Repubbc of Ching and not those of any ofher jurisdictions.
The standards, procedures and practicss fo audit such financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Repuolic of
China on Tawan.

Fimancil Repurts

73



Mega Financial Holding Company
(Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd.)

Balance Sheet
December 31, 2002

_

December 31, 2002

Assets Notes
Amount %o

Current Assefs

Cash A FAY § 400,778 0.24

Recelvables-nel 11,185 0

Other current assets IE-7 T e

Totol Current Assets 411,943 0.25
Lang-Term Investments

Long-term investments-net (&2 168,125,622 T
Fixed Assets &-3

Miscellansous equipment 2137 =

Leasehold improvements 5468 =

Less: accumulated depreciation {207) =

Total Fixed Assets-MNet 7.378 e
Other Assets

Guarantes deposits paid W 1.7464 =

Defered bond ksuance expense (EAY 34,305 0oz

Defered pension cost II 4,476 =

Deferred income tax assefs-net & P-7 = =

Miscellaneous assets 10 e

Totol Cther Assets 40,555 0.02
Total Assets $ 168585538 100.00

The accompamying noies are an infegral port of these financial sfotemens.

74 | Annual Reporn 2002



Expressed in Mew Taiwan Thousand Dallars

Liabilities & Stockholders® Equity Notes it bt
Amount %
Current Liabilifies
Short-term looins [V-dEN F 1,000,000 6.53
Accaunts payable 41,345 0.02
Total Current Liabilifies 11,041,345 6.55
Long-Term Liakilities
Bards peiyakshe V-5 15,000,000 890
Accrued pension lability N&IV-4 6,122 =
Total Long-Term Lickilities 15.004,122 850
Other Liabilities
Guorantes deposits received 1,351 =
Total Cther Liakilifies 1,351 -
Total Libilities 26,048,818 15.45
Stockholders' Equity
Capital stock
Commam Sock -8 110.488.402 £5.54
Capital Surplus HEI-F
Fremium on capital stock 45 524 0% .62
;ﬂu:ljustrnents an lorg-term investmeants accounfed 1132 _
ol uncer equity method
Retained Earnings
Legol reserve 077 446 3.0
Special resarve 354 247 0.21
Unappropriated retained earnings Il 6,237,231 3.70
Equity Adjustments
Useckzec docke 1 ket vabe o (66241 004
Cumulative adjustments on conversion 236,034 015
Treasury Stock I&IV-10 [29,740,440) [17.64]
Total Stackholders' Equity 142,536,720 84.55
Commitments and Contingencies i
Total Liakilities and Stockhalders’ Equity % 143,585.538 100.00
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Mega Financial Holding Company
(Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd. )

Income Statement
For the Period from February 4 (Inception Date) to December 31, 2002

_ Expressed in New Taiwan Thousand Dollars

February 4 to December 31, 2002

Notes Amount %
Operaling Revenues
Incarme from long-term stock investments 1E&1-2 $ 4500741 100.00
Total Operating Revenues 5 4500741 100,00
Operating Expenses
Adminkfrative and general expenses W 127,009 [1.55)
Other operaling expenses (275] [0.01)
Total Operating Expenses (127,284 [1.94)
Operating Profit 6,374,457 P804
Mon-operating Income
Inferest incorme W 27,442 0.42
Miscellonsous incoms 2,289 0.04
Total Mon-operating income 273 0.44
Man-operating Expenses
Inerest expense W (105.4636) [1.62)
Total Mon-operating expenses 1 105,634) [1.62)
Met Income before Tax 6,298,552 P4.08
Income Tax A (477) [0.107)
Met Ineame 3 6298075 PEA7
Basic Earnings Per Share: | Expressed in Mew Taiwan Dollars) .1
Met Income before Tax $1.0s
Met Income $1.04
Pro-forma disclosures are based upon the assumption that
shares issued by the corporation and held by its subsidiaries
are not freated os treasury stock:
Met Income befors Tax $ 6,286,350
Met Inearme $ 6285873
Bosic Eornings Per Share: [ Expressed in Mew Toiwan Daollors)
Met Income before Tax i 1.05
Met Income % 1.05

The aecompanying notes are an integral part of these finaneial staemenis.
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Mega Financial Holding Company
(Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co., Ltd. )

Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period from February 4 (Inception Date) to December 31, 2002

_ Expressed in Mew Taiwan Thousand Dallars

February 4 to December 31, 2002

Cash Flows from Operoting Activities:

et Income $ 6298075
Adjustments:
Gains from long-term stock investments-equity methad [4.501.741)
Cash dividends received from investee companies accounted for under equity methad 3,029 462
Depreciation and amaortization 493
Increase in receivables [11.1%5)
Increase in occounts payable 41,345
Increase in occrued pension liabilities 1,644
Met cash provided by operafing activities 2,858,085
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Increass in purchose of fixed assels |7.405)
Increase in guarantes deposits poid {1.764)
Increase in deferred bond issuance expense [34,593)
Increase in long-term stock investments [50,000)
Wet cash wed by investing activities [#3.762)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Increase in guarantee deposits received 1,351
Increass in short-term loans 11,000,000
IneTeass in bonds payable 15,000,000
Treqsury stocks purchased (28,364, 694)
Met cash used by financing activities [2.343.345)
Incrense in Cash 400,778
Cash balance at beginning of period =
Cash balance ot end of period $400.778
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for inferest $78.595
Cash paid for incorme tax $1.923
Investing and financing activities not affecting cash flows:
[rstitution by ssuance of stock under stock exchange $ 107572794
Capital increacse by paid-n surplus $ 2915608

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Mega Financial Holding Company
(Formerly CTB Financial Holding Co, Ltd.)
Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

Faor the Period from February 4 (Inception Date) to December 31, 2002

_

Common Capital Surplus
urpliu
Shares Amount "

Balance os of February 4, 2002 2915408 $ 29156078 § 30094296
Adjustment of subsidiaries' income in prior year = = [128.220)
Capital Increaze by Paid-in Surplus 291,561 2515808 12.915,608)
Issuanca of comman stock by stock exchange 7.B41,671 FBA416,714 =
Premium on comman stock from consolidation o = 22873741
Adjustment of Long-term stock investments accounted for
under aquity methad:
Changes in capital surplus = = 1,132
Changes in cumulative adjustments on conversion = = =
Losses on unredlized declines in market value — - —
of lang-term equity investments
Met Income from February 4 to December 31, 2002 = = =
Income from long-term stock investments accounted for under = = =
equity mathod before share exchange

Tracsury Stock Purchased = = =

Treasury Stack held by subsidiaries — — =

Bolonce os of December 31, 2002 11,048,840 $ 110,488,402 § 49925341

The aecompanilng noves are an integral port of these fnancial stmermems

T8 | Annual Reporn 2002



Expressed in New Talwan Thousand Dellars/Thausand Shares
e

Retained Earnings Treasury Unrealized Declines in Cumulative Total
. Stock Market Value of Adjustments Stockholders'

Legal Surplus Special Reserve Unappropriated Eamings oc Long-term Stock Imvesiments  on Co 1 Equity
$ - $ - § - $ (1.283.552) $ - $ = $ 57.946.822

- - = - — — 128,220)

= - = - — = 18416716

3077, 445 354.967 34,524 - [33.645] 91.285 28,398.318

_ — = = = 166,749 166,749
_ _ — - (32.596) - (32.598)
- - &298.075 - - - £298.075
- — [93,348) — = = (73.368]
o o = (28,364,696 — — 128,344,656)
=t A= — 92.212) - = (#2212

$ 5.077.445 $ 354947 $ 6.239.23 § 129,740,440 0 [66.241) $  258.064 $142.536720
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Il Mega Financial Group

&3 Mega Financial Holding Company

BT

Barits Securifes Boris Infernationo! Chung Heing Bills
Corporation Securities Co, i, Fincnea Corporalion
100%
Barits Investment Infernational Fulures Chung Hsing
Services Comp. ™ Co,, ltd. | Securities Corp
00.08% 100% 00.50%
Inhernatianal C|'mng Hsing
Barits Holdings Lid. o | | Securfies Invesiment o | | Securities Invesiment
100% Consulfing Co., Lid. Service Corp
_ 100% _ 09T
; ]
Borits Secuefes ﬂmf
{Hong Kongllid. =+ Holdings L [
100% X
100%
Barits Ho Chang
Securities id,
100%
Barits Infernational
Asset Management =
Corp.100%

Chung Yin Insermational
Insurance Commercial Bank of
Agency Co. Cothay [Canada]
100% 100% |
Troding Company & e
68.27% m
100%
Yung-Shing Cathiary Investment
Industries Co. & Warehousing Lid,
95.27% 100%
Win Card Romlett Finance
Co, Uid. Heldings Inc.
100% 100%

Cathay Insurance
Compary Inc.
56.09%
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[} concise Company Profile

_ Dec, 31,2002 Expressed in thousands

Date of
mpan
e y Incorporation
Chicie Tung Bank 1907.03.14.
The Internaticnal Commercial
i 19711217
Bank of Ching
Barits Securifies Corporation 1789.07.03
Barits International Securities
1989.10.19
Co., Lid.
Chung Hsing Bills Finance
i 19760503
Corporatfion
Chung Euo Insurance Co., Lid. 1931.11.01
CTE Anancial Management &
20020114
Consulting Co., Lid.
International Futures Co., Lid, 19990729
Internafional Securities
1999.02.01
Investment Consulting Co., Lid.
5] Securities (Global)
: 1998.11.06
Haoldings Lid.
Barits Investment Services Corp.
19971210
Barits Holdings Lid.
1997 .05.05
Barits Securities (Hong Kong)
Ltd.
1997 05,23
Barits Ho Chang 1992.08.20

Securities Lid, [Barits Holdings
Lid. invested the
compay in 1999)
Barits International Asset
1998.01.14
Monogement Corp.
China Products Troding 1956.12.29

Company
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Address

#1 Heng Yang Rood, Taipsi,
Taiwan

100 Chi-lin Boad, Taipei, Tawan

10F, Mo, 102, Sec., 2 Roosevelt

Rocad, Toipei, Tawan

B1, M543, Sec. 4, Chung Hsioo E.

Road, Taipel, Tawan

3-7F, No 123, Sec. 2, Chung Hsico

E. Road, Taipsi, Taiwan

10-12F. Mo 100, Chiin Road,
Taipei, Taiwan

SFL, Mo, Heng Yang Road,
Taipei, Tawan

B1-1 Mo.563, Sec. 4, Chung Hsioo
E. Road, Taipe, Taiwan

4F, Mo.543, Sec. 4, Chung Hsioo E.

Rocad, Toipei, Tawan
PO Bo 309, Grand Cayman

10F-1 Mz 102, Sec. 2, Roosevelt
Road, Taipel, Tawan

PO Box 957, Offshore
Incorparations Centre, Rood
Town, Tartola, British Virgin blands
Roorm 3403-3407, 34F, Edinburgh
Tower, The Landmark, No.15,
Gluesn's Rood Central, Hong

Kong

Room 3403-3407, 34F, Edinburgh
Tawer, The Landmerk, Mo, 15,
Glueen's Rood Central, Hong

Kong

F.O, Box $57, Offshore
Incorparations Centre, Rood
Town, Tartola, British Virgin blands

3F NDLZ Sec.], Chung Ching 5.

Road, Taipsi, Tawan

Paid-in
Capital

MTDZ7, 148,878

WTD37, 261,000

MNTD4, 524,110

MO, 114,740

MTDZ8,114,411

MTD4, 368,977

WTD 10,000

WTD327,600

WTD00,000

USs00

NTD 320,000

LISDE7, 752

HECE0,000

HED30,000

LISD10,000

MTC 5,000

Main Business

Cormmercial banking &

industricl banking business

Cormmercial banking business

Brokeroge, dealing and
underwriting of securities
Brokerage, dealing and

underwriting of securities

Brokerage, dedling, underwriting,

af shart-term debt instruments

Hon-life insurance

Asset management and

investment consulting

Brokerage of future confracts

Securifies investment advisory

Cwerseas investment

Securities investment advisory

Inveastrment business

Investment consulting

Brokerage of sscwities

Assat management

Horvesfing, processng, frarsporting,
and warehousing  of agriculture
products (The company stopped
cperalion snce 1944)



_ Dec. 31,2002 Expressed in thousands

Company

Yung-Shing Indusiries Co.

Chung Yin Insurance Agency

Co.

Win Card Co., Ltd.

International Cormmercial
Bank of Cathay (Conada)

Cathay Investment &
Warehousing Lid.

Cathay Investment &
Developrment Corporation

|Bohamas)

Ramlett Finance Haldings inc.

Chung Hsing Securities Corp.

Chung Hiing Securities

Investment Service Corp.

Cathay Insurance

Company Inc.

Date of
Incorporation

1950.12

1996.11.05

20001011

1982.12.01

1982.11.00

19469.07.15

1982.01.13,

1988.08.24

1998.10.27

19600406

Address

3F MO.Z, Sec. ], Chung Ching 5.

Road, Taipei, Tawan

&F, Mo %9, Sec, 3 Chung-yang
Road, San-chung City, Taipei
Hsien, Taiwan

4F, Mo 99, Sec, 3 Chung-yang
Road, San-chung City, Taipei

Hsien, Taiwan

Morth York Madison Cenfre 4950
Yonge Street, Suite 1002 Toronto,
Ontario, M2M K1, Conoda

Calle 14 Colon Free Ione Local
Mo, 4 Edificio No 49 PO, Box 4038
Caolon Free fone, Colon,

Fepublic of Panarma

Post Office Box 3937

N U, Baharnas

Calle 50 y Esguing Margarita A de
allaring, Edificio ICBEC, Panarmo
4-5F, Mo, 125, Sec. 2, Man-king East

Food, Taipei, Tatwan

12F, No.125, Sec. 2, Man-king Eost

Food, Taipei, Tatwan

10F, Tytana Plaza, Lorenzo Ruiz
Binondo, Manila,

Philippines

Paid-in
Capital

WTD 100,000

WTD 2,000

M 50,000

CAD 23,000

S0 1,000

UsD s

S0 20

MTC: 4,144,000

WTD 100,000

PHP 50,000

Main Business

International frading and
agency service for eleciranic
data processing. prinfing and

pockaging

Life insurance agent

Business  consulling  and
management of paost due

pocounts receivable

Commercial banking

Warehousing of exported and
imported merchanciss

International investment and

development

Investrment of real estale

Brokerage, deaqling and

underwriting of securities

securities investment cdvisony

Man-ife insurance

Foofimere ¢ Excivege rare © PHPI=NTDOASE ¢ USIN=NTS3L78 F CADI=NTS220657 » HRDI=NT$L 4503

Coronap Inbormarion
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Il Operation Information

_ Dec, 31, 2002 Expressed in milions of MTE, except EFS

. Total g Earnings
Paid-in  Total Asset  Total  Stockholders Operating et income
Company = ting Income Per Share
Capital Liabilities Equity ﬂE\I’EIlUE (Loss) { After Tax) (After Tax)
Chioo Tung Bank 27.148,878 SBRBAT 06 S34.906,138  S4930948  ZBAN 540 TFTEYT 408383% 1.54

The Internaticnal

Commercial Bank of Ching 37,261,000 970226772 908138212 2088540 34395238 3BSTET4 3572744 094

Barits Securities Corporation 452010 18754815 13063322 54671493 1,018,933 MLA. 148, 285 (.30

Barits Interrational

iy e 4114760 10356511  7.244851 3111660 1054870 N.A.  -185564  -0.45
Chung Hslng Bills

Finance Corporation 28,114,411 43822011 7980967 35,841,044 8123014 M.A, 3252493 114
Chung Euo

e S 4368577 14431935 9533583 4,498,352 10,542 488 135,255 119,148 0.27
CTE Anancial Management & 10,000 31,848 4999 24,849 29,320 19,647 14849 1549

Consulting Co., Lid.
International Futures Co., Lid, 327,600 B0, 658 SE6.135 X2.523 132,578 -5,984 4,737 0.4

Internaticnal Securities Investment

Consofing Co., Lid, 100,000 95,392 1344 94,048 6514 -4,55] 6503 0.65
151 Securities (Global) Holdings Ltd. 17390 21,146 34.78 2111 174 0
Barifs Investment Services Corp. 320,000 336,894 3134 333740 785  -15550  -31643 0.0
Barifs Holdings Lid. 965215 8423685 7030404 1266633 496806 137448 132013 476
Barits Securities Hong Kong) Ltd. 356744 471,338 7956 463382 151,147 58284 54314 048
Barfs Ho Chong Securifies Lid, 133779 495012 200807 294,205 71854 10503 10290 20580
:T;;LET;?;PS;I F‘:“ET 347800 7525812 7017022 A0B49D 272431 48029 44243 6.62
China Broduets Trading Compeany 5,000 51,273 3,143 48,130 0 0 24853 24853
Yung-Shing Industries Co. 100,000 1444694  $26493 518201 208,418 BASY 12922 1292
Chung Yin Insurance Agency Cao, 2,000 20,809 8,002 12,807 25,259 7,553 2,740 48,70
Win Card Co., Lid. 50000 146,996 92,653 5443 22487 2,385 4002 859
g‘;g;f;&”%g:cm‘f’c"" Bark  so7s11 7063479 6586995 474484 206780 17531 10627 4620
Eﬂ’;ﬁ;ﬂ;ﬁ*{“@”* = 34780 100,348 54759 43589 15840  -1116  -2885 -2885.00
{D:gvg?gp:nmf:u:rgeu?;;uﬁon |Bahamas) 174 Gt okl hlod e e s S
Ramlett Finance Hokdings Inc. 96 67.022 76,175 9,153 11,802 1,422 1023 681.00
Chung Hsing Securities Corp. 4164000 4239 264 73353 4165911 539,794 B 65,332 014
S Lo Pelul 100000 106,708 2340 104368 22249 NA 3367 034
Irvestment Service Corp.

Cathay Insurance Company Inc. 32,455 40,845 Z2.384 38,444 14,746 =2.333 -2, 667 =533
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